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A STEP AHEAD

IDAP has had a successful year planning, designing, ex-
ecuting and delivering important infrastruciure prejects
around the Punjab to improve the lives of the public.
With commendable foresight, the IDAP team has en-
sured expectations were met in o timely fashion and ot
budgeted costs for a large number of projects spanning
public health infrastructure, structural engineering,
transportation ond civil engineering and energy infra-
structure. The IDAP team is committed to remaining a
step ahead in delivering excellence on each of its under-
takings.
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Vision and Mission

Our Vision

Qur vision is 1o be one of the leading infrostruciure design ond build crganizations in the
warld,

Our Mission

Cor mission is lo franstarm the Punjob Government’s vision inla reality by delivering
slute-of-the-arl projects Thol fullil public needs and improve gualily al life.

Qur leam is pur biggesl ossel. We work as o fomily ond bBelisve in mutual respect af oll
levels, We pravide an enabling wark cullure where lop quaolily prefessionals are empow-
ared lo achieve their moamuom polential, As o lsam, we are focused on delivering infra-
structure projects in the maost efficien! and cost-effective monner.

Cwr local and inlernalional parlners such as consulfants and controctors are the key lo our
success. We work wilh them in the mos! ethical, fair and fransporen| monner. We do every-
Ihing that we can to sopporl and focililole Their work in Pakistan.
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Ethics

We are uhcompromis-
ing in our integrity, hon-
esty and faimess,

camely & Harith

We are relentless in

keeping pecple safe

angd  we provide o

healtby work erviron-
ment:

Cuainy

We are possionate
about - excellence and
doing our work right
the first fime, Our replu-
tation depends on aGur
deliverad volue in the
ayes of avery clion| and
communify.

People

OO

Wa inspire aach ather
with purposaful wark,
challenging  develop-
men! apparunities and
rewarding careers. We
aspire to ba the em-
ployer of choiea in aur
industry.



M LLINEY

-.\__._,.--

We octively build o' di-
verse, inclusive and col-
loborative work environ-
ment where gll views ara
witleomed, openniess s
ancouraged, and team-
work and merit ore cor-
nersfones. We ore proud
of what wa do and how
we do i,

Relofionship

Innovation

Results

|1-. SO Ii:'ll_'.:||h_\"

f@\)
o 4

We  build positive,
long-farm warking rela-
fionships with our gli-
ants,, oint-venture part-
ners, subcontroctors,
suppliers  ond  col-
leggues, based on frust,
respect ond collobera-
tan

We develop ond apply

world-closs  lechnology.

We listen, learn and

seek oul {he best ideosin

order to cantinually im-
prove,

Wa have o ‘do-whatey-
erdttnkes” otiteds, sm-
powered ‘ond- entrepre-
neurial operafions,
within o comman frama.
work of voalues, strate-
gres ond key processes,

We imprave fhe guality
of life in communities
where we work by re-
spaciing focol cullures,
engaging loool people
and profecting the-anv-
ronment
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sarcar Lsman Ahmad Khan Buzdor
Chief Minister of the Punjob

OCur vision is o focus on the progress and prosperity of Punjab
Keeping in line with this vision, our priarity is the development
of deprived areas lo pravide basic focilifies througheu! the Prov
ince. Infrastructure Development Autharity of Funjob will ploy
vitad rale in the fulfillment of our vision through efficient resource
ulilization and costaffective development

Messages from the Board

Sardar Muhammad Asif Moka)
Minister Communication & Warks
Department Punjab/Chairperson IDAP

IDAP has spearheaded key projects in Punjeb, specifically in
healthzare, The quality of work and focus on susteinability re-
flect their sxperfise in the orea. The team hos worked passion-
ately to integrate IDAP's values in these projects. By locking at
thair performance in the infrestructure sector, | am sure that
they can grow into one of the best design and build erganize-
fions in the werld



fawwod R thgue Ml k

Chief Secretary, Punjab

The canshruction of guality infrastructure in Punjob is pivetal for
execution of our vision for the province. IDAP haos lived up 15 its
values of ethics, Innovation and sustainability. Their commiiment
and consistency is reflected in the sxecution of their projects.

Hamed Yagoob Sheikh
Chairman, Planning & Development
Beard, Punjob/Vice Chairperson, |DAP

Punjob needs modern and adaplive infrostructure thal can hune-
tion sustoinably. Due fo resource deficit and environmental de.
terioration, we need orgonizations that can werk with o holistic
appreach to design ond canstruction. IDAP exhibits experfize
in these areas with a keen focus on lechnology and cut

ting-edge focility

13
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Message from the
Chief Executive Officer

Thin IDAP tegm has worked industriously threughou! the year, hond n haod with our local and inlernalional pssociolos, confrochors and
cansulidnts, delivering imparlant infrostructume projects around the Punjab. As o part of the Governmenl of the Punjob, we strive o frans-
form the Govemment's objechives into realify In infrastructure development,

This yerr wos morkad with mojor milestones, whers wa remained o step ohead in driving developmeant through innovation, commilment
and superionty in exaeculion. Wark an ane of our flagship projects, the Pakiston Kidney & Liver Institute ond Ressarch Center [PKLI & RC)
s canlinued full Tares, Cur leam has ensured we remain within budget and conform o given daadlines so thal tha fiest phaso of the praj-
ect is lounched on time in December 2017 PEL is on 820 bed haspital in Lohore which will be cne of the largest fronsplant centers in the
world, praviding free of cost medical services to the financially disecdvantoged dand employment to 5,000 paople. The hospital will offer
elinical care, as woll as, teaching ond ressoreh sppouniies in the areas of kidney, blodder and liver disooses.

Cthar important kealtheore projects IDAP is working on are the establishment of Hepatilis Prevantion and Treatrment Pragram (HPTP) clinics
and this revamping of Tehsil Headguarlers (THQ) Hospilals and Distiicl Heodguaiers (DHQ) Hespitals ooress the Pupjab, Patiems hove
nocess to world-closs medical taclifies, hepatitiz experts and the newest medicines ol HFTP clinics, bielt by IDAP ot varous losofions oround
the pravince, These purpose-buill clinics will assist in sfiminating hepalifis fram the country, This impartant projed will result in a more &f-
lective healtheore systam ol primory and secondary levels, guaroniesing thol the public hos gocess o the best mediool core, resources ond
focilities.

W a1 loeking Sorward 1o now opgoriunilies in e coming pear and ain fa furtber improve our dalivery of these Trporan lnsks, Vilal proj-
ects in the pipeline for IDAP include the building of o madern, purpose-built campus {or the Intermotion Technology Wniversity (ITU); the es-
tablishment of Knowledge Park in Lahare and tha bullding of facilifies far the Pakistan Forensic Sclence Agency [PFSA) and ihe Pakisian Ag-
ricullure, Foud and Drog Aulhorily (FAFDA), among olhers. Projuds like Ihese will pravide the public wilh imporant serviees and focililies
while promoting economic gmesth and secal development

Thr st Toundation of our arganization ollows us to focs challanges by focusing on eer underlying strengibis, Wil new projects and op-
portunities on the honzon, we of IDAP ore prepared ta deliver the very bestfor oll out stokeholders. The excellence, ideols and skilled expe-
rignce of aur Wom pravide us with somplete confidanca that IDAP will confinue 1o be o step ahead in délivering high quality infrastinicturs
prasjects bor ho betiurman! of Punjols and of Pakisian,

Mujahid Sherdil
Chiel Execulive Oficer
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The Bank of Punjob

EY Ford Bhodas

50 B-3, Gulberg Il Lahore - 54460, Pakistan
Ph: +92 42 9933263 1- 4
Fox: +92 42 99332645- 45



Mr. Sardar Muhammad Asif Nakai

Chairpersan
Mirister, Communication and Warks Deparimen),
Governmant of the Punjcb

Mr. Hamed Yaqoob Sheikh

Vice Chalrperson
Chairmion, Flanning and Bevelopment Boord;
Government of the Punjab

Mr. Muhammad Masood Mukhtar
Secratary, (I & C Wing) Services ond

General Administrotion Deporfroent,
Govarnment of the Punjab

Mr. Faisal Farcoq Cheema
MPA, Sargadha

Mr. Umer Aftab
MPA, Sheikhopura

Ms. Syeda Zehra Naqgvi
MFA

Dr. Ahmed Javed Qozi

Sacretary, Locol Gavernment and Community Development Depatmant,
Govvernimenl of the Punjab

Capt. (R.) Saif Anjum
Secratary; Irrigation Department,
Govearnment of the Punjab

Mr. Danish Afzal

Commissionar, Lohore Division, Lohore

Mr. Nadeem Mahbub

Secralory, Housing, Urbon Development and Public Healih
Enginsering Dapgartment,

Gavernment of the Punjab

Mr. Muhammad Abdullah Khan Sumbal
Secratany, Finance Deparfmeant,

Gevarnment of the Punjob

Mr. Wasif Khurshid

Secretary, Agncullure Department,
Government of the Punjob

Capt. (R.) Muhammad Mahmud

Cammissioner, Rewalpindi Division, Rawalpindi

Mr. Asad Ullah Khan
Secratary, Communication and Works Deparfimant,
Govarnment af the Punjob

Mr. Muhammad Shaheryar Sultan
Secralary, Transpor! Departimen,
Government of the Punjab

Mr. Mujahid Sherdil
Chisl Execitive OHlcer,
Infrastrecture Developrment Authority of tha Punjob
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IDAP Committees

Technical Commitiee

The Technical Commitfes of IDAP Board/Autharity comprisas:

1.

x

Member {Infrastructure Developmant], PED Board, as represanfafive
of Vice Chairpersen IDAP Authority / Chairman PAD Board
Sacretary, Local Government & Community Develapmant or his nomi
nee not below the rank of an Additional Secretary

. Sacretary, Housing, Urban Development & Public Health Engineering

or his nomines not below the rank of an Additonal Secretary

. sacretary, Finance Department or his nominee not below the rank of

an Additional Secrefary

. Chief Executive Officer, IDAF

Any co-opted member as Technical Expert




wecutive Officer (Chairman)]
Chief Financial Officer
i al Officer
. General Manager, Procuremant &

Human B

as of June 30, 2017 are os foll:

stary, Finance De
Secratary, Agriculture Department
ation Department
rd from the Provincial Assembly, Punjob 3. Gensral b

ontracts

tary, Irrig
O Memb f the Bo
Cne Technical Member of the Boord
Chief B Officer, |DAF

Chief Internal Auditar {Secrelary)




IDAP Committees

The list of members of HR Committes | a5 of June 30, 2017 are as fallow:

I:hl._‘urr'l'l-:_'tlrll ?"lr:lnrlnlu & :,:l&w_:!upmr:rﬂ Berard {Ch(m rr‘u;:u_-"'{:-:‘:-rwg-.r'n_:l_l
Secretary, Communication & Works Depordment

Secrotary, (| & C Wing) Services & General Administration Deparfment
Chiet Executive Officer, IDAP |Secretary]

Crrwr Technicel Member of the Board
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Core Team
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M. Mujabid Shorei]
Chief Executive Oficer

Mr, Migahid Sherdil is an-officer of the Pakistan Administrative Service and has been serving the Gov-
ermmend since 2004, He s cumrently posted oz Speciol Secrefary Finonce (Budget & Resources) ond has
arerdditianal ehorge of Chief Bxscutive Officer of Infrastructure Develeprmst Authanty of ths Punjel.

Mr: Mujabid Sherdil obioined degree of Mastar of Architeciure from Washington University, St Lodis,
M, USA in 2000, He did his Bachelors of Ads from Grnnell College, Grrinadl, towe, LIS9A n 1997,
Mr. Sherdil hos diversiied experience working os Depuly Commissioner, lslamebad Copital Territary,
Isbesmiesbsnel: Pringipal Stoff Officer to the Prime Minister of Pakiston; Direcfor Genenal Punjob Disaster
Munggement Autharity; Distrel Coordinalion @ficern Siolkal, Purjaly; Depuly Sdcrekary (Genwral] o the
Chiel Secrefary Punjab; Depuly Secrefary (Rescurces), Finance Depardment, Govemment of the Punjak;
and Programme Manager [Urbon Development), Earthauioke Reconshiction & Rehabilitafion Authority
[ERRA), Frime Miister’s Secratanal, Govarnmien! of Pakisian.

Mr, Azt Mowos

Chief Oparaling Officer

M Beimal Mawar has 30 yeors axpefiencs in operations monagomont. He kos led crsalion, growih
ond furnarcund of 50+ orgenizations ocross the globe, His industry sector know-how includes haalth-
core, education, energy, pefrachemicals, construction and reol estate amang ofhers: Througheait his
vapetn he hos been o decisve leader, who al the sperating company levdl hos developed, motvated,
strangthenad, redirected and rafionalized businesses and feams via boord -ond monogement moles; Mr.
Peveierz halels an MBA fram 1he Londen Businass Schacl, LIK

Mr. Zubair Arshad
Chief Internal Audilor

My, Zubair Arshied 8 o member of the [nstitute of Chatlkered Ascountonts in England & Wales (UK) and
Jillowe mermber of the Associofizn of Charwred Cadified Accountants of LK. He has over 18 years of ax-
(etishve exparience in oudit, nssurance, business odvisory and ransformialion roles, of which mora than
| § years s working for on international big 4 advisary firm in UK

He hos:significan experience and inferest in setfing up end resliucluning / ehange monogemsni, con-
ducting investigations, gdvisory ond consulfing projects, and leading intarnal audit funchions with o
sifang focis on :H:lding measisrohle value 6 the business

e has developed sitective Governmanee framewark comprising of eontral based policies, procedursy
(g puthonty moinces suitieg e business needs ond alignment of the lramewiark with looal regulotony
[romewait,

Mr. Ahmod Norir Warrgich
Chief Legal Officar

Mi. Abmod Mazir Woraich brngs vast public ond privals sectar legal exparience. He hos consideroble
mrpertise in e field of low, a5 o procficing Advacate, as Adjund Fooulty of Law and hios alse warked
lor close to sight years in (he Ministry of Law, Jusiice & Human Rights, os well s seving for o years
s the Heod of Legal & Treaties Division of the Ministy of Foreign AHairs, Government of Pakistan:

He dich his Let from the University of Mollingham, UK, ond @ ©ne Yeor Hon.Degree Fellowship 1n
Law trom thie Washington Callege of Lav, American University, Washingfen, D.C, USA. In odditian, he
did o Cra Month cedificate course fram Institlul de Deails de 'Hemmea, Strinsbaung, Fronde. He has
tane shortcourses from the IMEWE Hs, Washinglon, D.C, and also from the University of Califormo
Los Angeles,

He hos vamous legsl ressarch poblicalions to lus crodit and hos reod popers ol o number of intem-
[iznol conferancas. He hos also contribuled anlicles 1o notional doilies;




M. ANSEN INonun

Chief Finoncial Officer

M, Ahson Shomimcompleted his Bochelars in Business Admipistrofion ond Masters inAccaunting frem
(he University of Michigan, Ann Arbor, USA, He lesaxiensive wark exporisnca with PricewabterhouseCoo.
jers |PwiC] in Chicoge and Mew Yark, os a Serior Manoger in {heir ossurance praclice. He remained en-
goged with a vamety of finanoial services clients Including banks, brokers, Hedge funds, privale squily
[unds and assef managemen firms: After working with PwC, Mr, Ahson Shamim wos Viee President of Fi-
parcial Reparting af o regiondl fixed income osset manogement firm in Mew Yark os o part of Bank of
[Haw York Mellon. On his retim o Pakistan, ha joined the Lahore University of Manogement Sciences s
Assiston Professar in thoir Sulisman Dowoed School of Business, where, in addifion o 1enching under:
groduate ond groduafe lavel occounting courses, he waos alsa the MBA Progrom Director: His protession-
ol designations include Cerlified Public Sccauntant [CPA] and Chartered Finoncial Analyst {CFA).

M, Koshil #l, Maoljic
Chief Technology Officer

[nfarmation Techneloagy amd Change Monagemen! Leader wath 1# < yeors ol USA's Silican Yallay axpe-
Hance in bislding softwara systems & solufions for many of the farfunes 100 companies such as Google,
Inted, General Motors, Amalicon Express, Verizon, Sprint; MicraStrotegy et

Betore jolning IDAR, wos employed tor 6 years os the Direclor, Bl & Informofion Products ot Visa Inc. en-
frusted with hurring dote infe relevont and consumable insights that inférm decision-makng, identity
appartunilias, -and provide o foundation for o measuremiant fecosed cullure

He halds o Degree in Computers Sciences and Engineering from GIK Institite amed fs alsoon dlunmoes
fof Cordet Callege Hosonabdal, Apart [kem his professional responsbililies, Kushil alse founded ond &
currently presidant of AAkia - a 501 [c)i3) US Mon-Profil which focuses an Education, Reliel ond Inshiu-
lian Building

My, Usmean Talir Ferooo
Financial Advisor

#r Usman Tahir s o qualified chorfared gecountant from Pokistan ond England & Woles. He possess
rich sxperiance spannihg over fwa decoides in the areas of financiol and fransechion advisory, risk man-
trgement ond stralegy and growth services offersd fo public and private sector prgonizahions, Ma s alsa
i Distinguizhed Toastmaster and a framer for the board of directors of listed companies ond poblic
seclar argonlzations under Direclors Trainiog Program of Sscunily and Eschange Commissian of Foki-
Whin

Mi. Fior Ahmocd Mohal
General Marnager, Adminisirafion

M. Fioz Ahmad Miehal did hes Master’s in History (Sooal Scences) and Bochelor's in Arts bram Unversi-
Iy of the Punjob, Mr. Mohal i o kighly maotivated and hordwoerking iedmidual brelenging o defonct Fro-
visional Tl Sarvicrs Execulive codre wilh ground 1B yeors of diversified sxparience in Puklic Seclor
Frogrammes AJperolions, anging trom conducting ciminal [udiciol trials, fresbleshoofing in routine
fovernance Up to leading/esscuting Infrastrocturcl Development Projects ond Human Resauiee Man-
g

25
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Dr. fawod Muzaffar
General Manager, Enginesring & Planning

Or. Favead Muszafior complated his Bachelor's with Honars in Sivil Enginesring frim University of Engi-
nearing anedl Technolagy, Lishicre ored was omong (he top 5% of his-batch. He did lis M3c Struchural En-
ginesring and PhD Stuctural Englneenng fram Stanford Unneersity, USA, De Muzatfar has exfensve
axparimes in the field of engineering and has previciisly workad as an Individual Censdltan, Planning
& Development Depariment, Govermment of the Punjab; Senior Enginesar [Srudhures), Rizwaon Miro
Consulling Englnwers and Junior Enginews [Shuciures), Malional Engineenng Semvices of Pakistan,

Mz Myra All
General Manoger, Planning & Design

Ms. Myro &li has done her Bochelar's of Acchiteciure from the Mationol College of Ars ond Master's
from Savannah Callege of Art and Didign, Sovannah, Georgia, USA in Vikual Effects and Animatiog
She has camplated an MPhIl program af University of Combridge, UK in Interdistiplinory Design in Ile
Built Evvirenment wilh specific interest in Sustainable Design. Har sxpertiss i in Preject Monogemsn)
and Interdissiplingry Design with amphass on he designing of suslainable bulldings and suslamnhle
studies. She hos 19 years of diverse sxperience of warking with many wall-knawn firms in Pakistan and
internaiional firms like Envoer and Trident Internahonal Holdings in Dubal, UAE

Mr. Hosson Homasd
General Manager, Projec! Managemenl

e Hassan Hameed is o civil enginesr with B.5¢ in Civil Enginesring fram UET Lohers and M. 3¢, from
Uriversitd de La Rochellé = Franee in Building Enginenting with e wmphosis an new conslruc)isn
ferchmicglies.

Hoassen has 20 years of wirk sxperanos in motor ways, luniels, infrostuctors snd Buildivgs. A Bighly
skilled Civil Engineer with & background of working an Austrafia and Pokistan’s largest, mos! complex
and high profile infrastrodure projecls and consistenily exceedng sxpectalions.

Throughouwt His: corear, he hos demonstrated incredible ability 1a innovale, gquastion canstruction
methods; malerials and progroms to develop and implement highty effective solutions. These innewa-
tiars hove resulied in signiticant cost and time savings whilsl achinving quality and successtul projoet
defivary in the face of signilicant chollenges.

M, Adil Htikhor
Ganeral Manoger, Human Resource

M, Bl ke has over |5 voars of divesified exparience o oll Tocels of HR inelutding Talav Meanege-
ment, Total Rewards, Crganizotional Development and Change Monogement ncvoss Pokiston, Middl=
Evist and Asio Paciflo countnes. Adil has werked for various industries including FMCG, Enginesrmg &
Construclian and Infarmation Technolegy, e has headed various HR roles n Papsi Cola Intermetianal
ond Descan Engineering Limited with proven frock record of susfainable orgomzational transtormation,
talent engagement and developmant infflatives, Adil holds an MBA degree trem Coventry Unlvarsity,
Epgland, LK,




Mr. Raheol Sulbem
General Manager, Healthcare Projecs ||

M. Raheel Sultan is @ groduate of Eleelrizal Engineening frém Unlvessity of Engliveering & Technology
Lohars | 1980),. He joinad Pakistan Arvy as commissianad officer in the Corps of Elacitical & Mechani-
cal Engimeenng offer gradiuation, He fhen did his specalizotlon m Blomedical Epgmeering from USA
In 1986, He is o seasaned officer with diversifred siperibnce of aven (hirty years in the fisld of Siamed-
ical Enginearing. He has beerproviding professionnl services tor Armed Forces Hospitals in the field
of medica! equipmant planning and mointenance. He served oz Thist Biomedical Enginesr in Paki-
Ghorl Ay ol Armeed Fordes [nsfilute of Cardiology from 2004 fo 2008, M. Raheo) Sulkan dlso hos s
dched experisnce of working as Chist Constlfan! ot o Biomedical Enginesring firm from 2009 4o
#04.

Mr. Ame=r Mirzo
Geaneral Manager, Procurement and Contracis

Mishammad Amer Mirzn graduated from the University of Engineering and Technology, Lohors [Tasxila
Coarmpus] with o bochelar's disgrse in Sivil Enginesrimg. He bos over 25 yeors of edperionce i con-
struction, construction supafizion and controct manogement of megaprojects, drafting of documents:
tor precurenent of civil works, rensulioncy services, and geads along with the drmfling of confrac
Hocumants. He hos vast experionoe of implomentalion of various eonirocts bosed en FIDIC Candiflions
ot Cantract including Red book anid Silver Book in line with notified documents by Pakistan Enginear-
ing Council ond the Government of Punjab. The canstrucion monagement of prajects included spe-
onlized, residanfiol and sducalishal boildings, bridges, infrostructure works, ond hydel poser projeds
of complex notuie. He hos servad tor sitesn years with leading consullancy firms imdluding Moficnal
Enginesring Services Pnkistan — NESRAK {Pvi) Lid and Assoclote Consulting Enginesrs - ACE (P Ltd
He leel the measuremsent sectian of Ghinzi Barolba Hydro Power Prioject (Power Chonpel C-07). Fur-
{harmare, ke workad on the first of fskind Faransic Science toboratory in Labiores és o Residend Eng:-
neer fram scroteh to complefion; His major projects include Ghosi Barotha Hydro Power Project,
Chashing Hydro Power Projec], Farensic Science Labormtory, CShinial Bridge aver dver Chienak, Ln-
iwrsily of Aden, Yeman, and Pakistan Housing Projec.

Me. Shehesd Naie leghon
General Manoger, Heolthcare Projects |

O, Shehzod Mazir Leghari greduatad from King Edward Medical Callags In 1985 and joined Goverrn-
mant of the Punjab where he goined knawledge of evidence-basad analysis threugh forensic axperi-
ence that hos been used os on otset thioughoul his carees In 1987, he did his Moster's i Blomuadizal
Englnaaring friem Surrey University, LK.

Having uhigue combinafian ol formal edicalion i clinfenl and anglneering dissiplines, he has been
an miegreder ol dinical regquirement with lechnology. Whils working with distributors of muliinational
companies of senar management levsl, he hoy been an antreprenaor o st up natisnol distribufion
retworks for high-and medical equipment manuloctivrers in Pokislan.

Or. Loghon established Pro-Hoalth, o consolling firm m medical planning and hospilal enginisarmi
ond developed o successful roadmap during the lost fitiean Yanrs wiih fropsformative heoltheore proj-
et e aEsignments (ninfrostruchoe development, technology promiremeanl, mdnagemani ond inte-
grofion damnd aperaional resnginesting belh of nafignel and intemational levels, Hi brings in maro
than twanty-five years of rich akpanence in healthcare infrastructure develapmeant to IDAR

In hoallheore design, miedicol planning ond sguipmen procurement, De Lyghor has over flly lorge
projecis to his cradd.

D, Leghar o membor ol famiencdn College of Chinical Engindermg IAGCE), USA, Assooale Memisar
of lnstitute of Physics and Enginesring in Medicine {IPEM), Englond. ond Professionol Affiliaie of The
Centre for Heallh Dasign, USA.
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Organogram

IDAP

Infrastructure Development Authority Punjab

Chief Executive Officer

e

Chief Internal Chief Information Chief Financial Chief Operating Chief Legal
Auditor Technology Officer Officer Officer Officer

Vbl

General General General General General General
Manager Manager Manager Manager Manager Manager

Engineering & Planning & Healthcare  Healthcare Project Procurement &
Planning Design Projects-I Projects-Il  Management Contracts
General Financial General General
Manager Advisor Manager Manager
Headquarters Administration  Human
& Business Resource

Development
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Services

echve toolks |

ing Project Manogement Services wi

le and resour iently and cost-effectively.

I Managemen! Jervices include

* Program Planning Oversight and Cantral
Master Schedule Development/ Uy
* Master Budge! Devele

fTracking

Allernate Project Deli
* Coniract Monagement
* Cost Estimation

* Value Engineening

* Project Controls

¢ Claim Manageament/i

* Dispule Resoluhion
* Mgintenance Plon/Management
* Risk A

agemeant

improve the obil







IDAP perceives planning as o vital part of the built landscape, o process that begins with the development of a hierarchical arganization
of spatial relafionships between buildings and the surroundings: The goal isto enhonca the choracter of where people live, leamn, work, so-
cialize, relox, shap, congregalte, dife and 1}|-;|:(.

IDAP aims to impart o-distingd sense of commuenity and ploce, while establishing o framework for current and fulure decisions; The aim is
1o craate \'.I‘I_':{-iﬂr'l'_L that are funcional, efficient, 55.'r_~-!,'.p£¥|:i“(, sustainable and environment 'lrin:nrﬂ:(.

IDAP hos consideroble expertise in urbon and lown planning: We have the skills ta design the most efficient use of available space, using
craativity and ir1'|a'.'rg'rr‘|-:|lir\r1. balanced by real weearldl p:’u:li({lll.‘y and solid r:|||1r|\l,rli|:'|:1| LSO Ing.
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|DAP's londscape architecture teams work with clients 1o shape thei
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Geographic Information System (GIS) Services

Developing counines foce unigue challenges with the design, construction and operalions of new infrasiruciunes, Mations wath established
infrostruciure have followed traditional technology modals for such services. However, with the use of (GI3] technolagy, daveloprment of
naw infrostructure follows confemparany technology models, eliminating dofa redundancy, mifigoting cost and assessing environmeantal
impacts,

Gl5 is o complete system thof visunlizes, questions, analyzes and infarprets the spafial dofo 1o understand the relotionships, pofferns and
trends between real world objects. s an essenlial teal thal allows for better understanding of 1he existing structure and enables the envi-
sioning of o more vioble alternative. It deals with variocus engineenng, plonning, management, fransporation, dasigning, infrostructure
and quality control applicafions and facilitotes management in the decision moking processes. Cne of the major funclions of G135 is the de-
velopment of intelligent digital mops thal are o proven technique of communicating geographic knowledge

IDAP is using GI5 in its planning ond design depanments to provide increased efficiency in the execufion of services. Infrasfruciure mon-
agerman! is mor efficient with the use of GIS, The visualization of assels and its surrounding environmaent while building, dupgroding and
repairing the infrostructure belps in daciding how fo priorfize work ond tacilitotes better decision making for execufing plans.
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Engineering Design

IDAR is committed to supporling regional governments by providing o comprehensive range of services, including eptimizing ovailable re-
sources towards sound infrastrusture investment decisions, pasifioning ossels 1o meet long lerm service delivery and accemmadating leng
term growth, For this purpose, IDAP ks o pool of experts, who are wel| versed with diverse globul requirements and simeraing trends ol
infrastruciume developmant.

IDAP's one-stap approach for mesling service delivery challenges exends beyond engineering solulions and includes in-depih experise
on a range of operaticnal, insfitulicnal and envirenmental aspects of infrostructure dalivery, providing reseorch and advice fo all fevels of
govarnmant, os well as to investors and awners of introstruciure; on the projects ond reforms that are needed for bridging the gops.

Curren! expedisa of the in-housa teom enoblas [BAP to underoke the following tosks/designs:

* Bulk Water Supply and Cutfall Sewears

* Ervironmential Maonitornmg & Manogoivient

* Geatechnical Engineering

* Highways and Transpartahon Struclures

* |ntegruted Projest Flanming

* Mechanical, Elecinicol, Plumbing {MEF)
Residential, Commercial and Industrial Structures

-
* Water and Wastewater Treaiment
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At IDAR we hove exdensive axpenence within the healthcgre field and in the dalvery of healthcore services through a planning procass
yielding innovative solufions, This experience includes backgrounds in healthcare admimizstration, medical aquipmeant planning and archs-
tactural design of heolthcore faalities. I is aboul simplifying complexity by integrating the products, machines, manufocturers, medical
spacialfies and engineering sarvices.

Provision for biomedical equipment is dasigned by keeping fulure regdmaps-in mind and by imtiating ther selection and procurement on
determined schedules ofier sfart of constriclion and/or ot oppropriate time whan the lotest techrology is procured. Team IDAP contributes
to the design of medical facilities from an end user perspective, as-wall as, with an engineermg and professional mindset,

Cur Medical Equipment Planners wark with the industry to stoy up to dote en the ever-changing technology of meadical and dingnostic
equipmient, We maintain a dolabase 1hat contains thewsands of madical equipmenl Bems to moke sure fhat the architectural and eng:-
nearing dasign feam has the detoils required tor o fully coordinated project. This involvement helps ensure thot the specific requirements
of the medical equipment systems and focility loyout, as well as, camplionce with the neceszary eodes and criteria, are met fo provide a
slate-of-thesarf well infegrated healtheore facilily withou! the need for going inlo expensive renovations laler. I is olso ensured thol the
guantity of equipment is optimal for the designead facility.




Information, Communication and Technology

IDAP provides cutfing-sdge 1CT - Infarmalion, Communicafian and Technology services 1o enable SMART Infrastruciure Solufiens, Sur ex-
perienced lechnology stoff distinguishes isell by leveioging dasign thinking, innovative fools, ond indusiry bes) praclices 1o defiver
piklta-gnd lurnkey salutiors that includes procurement, design & implemontation anabling erganizations to be mare scolabls, ransparsnt
arl afficient,

AL TDAR wie belisve o SMART Infrastraciure Selution, be i a Medical Facility or a Sports Compliex; reguires lales technalogy companents
We are focused nol only ol ideation but alse on acquiring, daployment and monilanng ef thess lechnalogy components which con be
brogdly segmented into two cotegories -e Mehwork ond Oparnfions & Softwore ond Services,

In Matwark and Cperations, we pariner closely with our Sivil, Elecineal, MEP ond Bio-Medical Enginesring to infuse lachnalagy os anin-
herent port af the averoll project. Hence, bullding 1CT processing, sforoge, ond pathwinys notivaly catering e our eument needs and fulure

puponsions of our projechs.

In Sottware and Services, we parrer closaly wath ourend-users lo understand thenr bosiness fundions and belp them ooguire and/or devel-
op saphisticated soltwane solutions which will enhomcs their capobililies and help ther scale their aperations with slliciency and secunty

NETWORK & OPERATIONS SOFTWARE & SERVICES

1. Tier 3 - Data Center Design and Build 1. HMIS — Hospital Management Information System including

2. IT Network design and build in compliance with international a.  EMR (Electronic Medical Records) covering all process of
standards e.g. TIA, ISO, EIA efc. OPD, IPD and ER.

3. Network laying with active and passive equipment capable of 10G b.  Clinical Physician Support covering Gynecology, Ophthalmic,
Bandwidth and 10,000+ network nodes. Orthopedic, ENT,General Medicine, Pediatric, Surgery, Skin,

4. SAS Software-as-a-Service via IT Cloud Infrastructure including Dental efc.
compute, network, storage, and orchestration c. LIS (Laboratory Information System)

5. Firewall protection providing application layer security. d. RIS (Radiology Information System)

6. Advanced Internet Access based on SDWAN. e.  PACS (Picture Archiving and Communication System)

f. CTMS (Clinical Trial Management System) for research facilities.

7. IP — Internet Protocol based & ELV - Low Voltage Systems such as 7. ERP - Enferprise Resource Management
a.  Building Management and Monitoring System Implementation / support of the following but not limited to:
b.  Surveillance System - CCTV Cameras a.  Finance covering General Ledger, Payable, Receivables,
c.  Communication Network - Analog and Digital Phone Cash & Bank
d. Fire Alert b.  Inventory & Asset Management
e Nurse Call c. Human Resource and Payroll
d.  Procurement

f. Public Address

8. IT Service Management providing 24/7 Help Desk based on 3. Business Intelligence & Dashboards

international standards of ITIL. a.  Visual presentation of key performance indicators (KPls)

9. IT Disaster recovery design and implementation with Backup and b.  Trend Analysis

Archival solution (SAN based backups) for critical patient / hospital
data durability. c.  Integrated data gathering from different modules to

generate meaningful information for quick decision and

policy making.

E-Procurement

#As o porf of Enferprise Resotiea Planmng (ERPjsystem e-procuramant sarvices are being used by IDAP @s a tool 1o bang transporency, lass
physical inlerachion, elficien cloud compiling servces, reduce procurement costs and shortien the procurement cyele fime o fasl lrock prog-
acts, The process of e-procurement covers eviery staga fram the jnitial idanfificotion of o reguiremant, fepder distribufion, bid submission,
evaluation, grisvences, and projects award according t5 the stendord fendering process.
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Sectors

Structural Engineering

The engineering strucluras that 1DAP builds ore first and foremoest those which ore neceszary to establish lines
of communication, heolth and residencies. Infrastructure such os bridges, underpasses, pre-fobricoted sfruc-
fures, residential communities, commercial blocks and hospitals, IDAR is also interested in those siructures in
which the civil or struchural enginesring ospect is very significant, ba it through the structure itself or in the way
it i il

Efficiancy is o key congern, IDAR structural engineers and integrated design feams conserve maoterials in con-
struction. To croale buildings that operate on lighter costs and fewer resources, he leams pursue excollence
in high-perfarmaonce fogodes and mechanical, elecirical, water ond wasta systems. IBAP helps occuponts
connect, communicafe and collaborate by embedding technalogy in buildings, ond sdfefy j= ossured with ad-
vanegd approaches to secorily, fire, seismic, wind ond il system designs.

IDAP also aims to pravide warhy housing o the people of the Punjab., The institution hoas the capaocity to cotar
for housing projects for all income levels. A highly professicnal team of archilects, urban planners and cvil
engineers are avaoilable to toke up projects of this sador and occomplish them in the most etficient monner.

The Govermmenl, aims 1o provide housing lor those of middle and fowerimcome level with appropriate access
to basic tocilities like health ond education, hoving adeguate municipol service delivery like water supply, sew-
erage, solid waste monogement system, aewell o= sufficient spoce and sheifer,

IBAP's commitment fo high standards is the key to success. The aim is fo reach the gool of delivering quality
sanvice in the housing sector with the higheast standards and best practices and lechnigues to enzire long term
sustainability

l!
ﬁ
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Transportation and Civil Engineering

High recd densily af any country is imperotive for good connectivity batween cities and locolities, ensuring
seamless flow betwean goods/services and their clients. Pakistan has on impressive 263, 775 kilometars nat-
work of ronds and highways. The naotional highways of the naotion are 12,131 kilomaters in length and carry
T bulk of fhe national frade troffic. In addition 1o the national freight, Pakistan will now b o to o lorge
volume of inferpntional freight traffic which will move thraugh the length of the country os part of the Chino
Pakisien Econamic Corridor {CPEC). The road nefwaork of Pokistan will play a big role in the econemic growth

of the country in the coming yéars, IDAP will be o comerstone in the realizotion and achievement of thiz goal.

Az ob 2011, 680% of tofal trips in Lohore ond 50% of totol 1rips in Karachs ore made by non-motonzed trans-
port. 9,632,000 trips are mode in Lahore doily demoenstrating the importance ond need of public transpon
and related infrastructure in Pakistan, Tha Metre Bus System in Lahore ond Rawalpindi is a major public trans-
port infrostructure that coters 1o the needs of thousands of commuters every doy. The Lohore Mefro carrnes
mare than 150,000 possengers overy day whereos (be slomabad-Rawalpindi Melfro Bus s colering fo the
needs of 135,000 passengers a doy. Besides these, rickshaws, waogons, foxis and tropsport buses are com-
monly vsed for infer-city and intra-city franspart.

Pakistan Eaibways is ancther source of fransportation in Pakiston thal hos a mass scale fratfic movement bath
for possengers and fraight. The network of Pakiston Roilwoys comprizes of 7,791 route kilometers, 457 loca-
mohives, |,/32 possengers’ coachos and 15,948 freight wagons. In ine with the Government's vision 20235,
for infrastructure development during the next ten years, Pokiston Railways s fo undertoke necessary sleps fo
ingrense its shore in tha overall fransport seder of Pakiston from 4% to 20%. |DAP will play a major role in
achisving a betlar public transport system and related infrosinuctare
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Public Health Infrastructure

The Punjab Government is commitied fo the principle of universal healtheare for all members of the society,
cambining mechanisms for health finoncing and service provisicn and impraving the health stotus of the pop-
ulation.

While overall health hos been improving in Punjab, the health of the least and less well-off hos been getling
worse. To address these inequaolifies in health services, judicious sleps are being token fo improve healthcore
delivery for the less forfunote by improving infrostructure focilities ot oll Tehsil Heodquarters and District
Headquarters Hospitals of the Punjab in a phasad mannar.

The deficioncy of beds to populafion ralie is alse being addressed by enhancing existing bed copacifies af all
primary, secondary and terfiory healthcare levals. Recep Tayyip Erdogan Hospital, Muzoftargarh is increasing
capacity to 500 beds. A stote-of-the-art 820 bed Pokistan Kidney ond Liver Instifute is under construction, the
firs! phase of which hos been inougurated. Also, o 128 bed Mother & Child Care hospital is being buill in
Murrea. |DAP is the exscufing agency for oll the above projacts and is committed to completing the projects
ir time and within budget.



Energy Infrastructure

The counfry’s energy demond has grown of on onnual consumption growth rafe of 4.8% in the past five yaars.
Our energy resources like coal, water, wind, waves, sclar, animal weste and nuclear need to be homessed
through an insfitulionalized strategy for optimum ufilization. Therefora, the need exists for o high and sus-
tained growth in energy supply ond infrastructure capacity of 7-8% per annum fo support the steady growth
in the country’s GDP

Fakiston hos embarked upon on ambitious plon 1o invest 576 billion ever the next six years to oddress energy
supply botflenecks and build quality infrostruciure. The Government’s recant developments are imperotive fo
overcoma tha menoce of anargy shorffall by sétfing out an adion plan through effective palicies for opfimum
usage of resources, sound planning ond design for energy efficiency and conservation, as well as, its proac-
five implemeniation to uhiihze the avalable resources astulely and wisaly, IDAP will look for energy efficient
ond cost effective solutions fo achieve this goal.




The Built Environment is being redefined globally by green development concepls. IDAF is confinuously evily-
ing the orgonization Phr(:-ugl‘: df_;s.iqlt and delivery processes 1o banc hrmark green development through inno
vation aimed ot helping clients and communi
ICAP aims at meating glebal design and engineering stondords translating torbetier performing and more en-
vironmantally friendly built environment,

as becoma more resourceful, resiliant, ond regenarative, Teom

One oy not nofice most grean development features in our projects, owing o their ssamless integration,
such oz, high performance enginvering systermes; well-being féotures like indoor air qualily, envirenmerndal re-
sponsivenass, welcome doylight to reduce enargy consumption during the day; sedally connect spaces and
accass fo usable cutdonr space which hos visial impact on the end-user thot $on enhanes the psychelogical
experiencn; sccupancy comfort, and social connectivity of spaces. This in furn, con lead 1o o more produdive
envirenment, decreased sickness for occupants, and o dynomic interactive place to exchange and develop
iclesas




BSL-llIl Laboratories

IDAF has worked the design and execulion of state of the or BSL-3 laborotories with fully outemated HYAC
system,

The salient features of this HVAC system are automoted pressurizafion contral with 1008 exhaust, separats
dedicated HVAC equipment for individual laboratery, avtomated femperature contral, and exhaust air filkered
fhrough HEPA filler bank.

Whilst following the bes! engineering proclices, intelligently calculated ond specified special plume fans ara
deployed o blost exhoust air into the atmosphere up to several meters to keep the surroundings sofe from
any contaminafion thraough laborotory exhaust.

Indoor air quality is achieved by deploying the sensifive HVAC system fully backed up with uninterupted power
supply, whilst the fleorn, the walls and the ceiling are rendered with seamless finishes, Anfe rooms are designed
and constructed fo achieve the contamination coniral.

Moreover, the woste of the labaratory has lo poss throegh the: Sewage Trealimen! Plant (STP) before antaring
into the city drain,
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Departments

IDAP s HE & QD Deporrment 15 ochively mwalved in binag lolenled piofessionols from ocross the giobe. Professionals bove been succassiul-
Iy inducted of varous hierarchical lavels o deliver prajects ol par with international stondards, The departmant confiriies o opply & stan-
dardized compelilive selachon pretedure 1o affract and ratamn skilled and committed professionals an merit. Propasals and processes hove
been mode o create o more odopiable workforce and 1o foster ond sustoin high performonce.

Performance Management 15 olso o key pricnty tor the deportmeant which cims o conbineously supporfing ine managers ond stol in
ochieving apfimum productivity, increasing employes engagement, professonal sotisfortion and well-being The Performance Monoge
mienl System, wos designed ond implemented for all sligible amployees. s alm is o dinterce the perfermaned culluie of IDAP lowards
beter orgonizationo! perfermance and greater cost effectiveness.

The Deparimen! bas launched o numiar el axcilimg csgomashonal dirvirlaprrent progroems avier e lost yeor wncd have added values 1a
emplovees indivduolly and to fhe argonization oz a whale. Highlights frem e vear include

* Technical Cluster Program

A Technicel Cluster Progrom wis developed lor the Dparohons leoms. The purpose of his progiam s 1o create o platform for
like-mnded sncviduals to jon senior stoff and think callactively 1a find innavative techoical solutions i relation fo projects, This will




enable them to discuss their problems and seek solutions ccross IDAR This plotferm will become a knowledge sharing hub threugh which
senior managers can coach and mentor junior group members. All the technical clusters meet monthly and share knowledge/lessons
learned. Recognition and awards are also given.

+ |DAP Values Proegram

Having a clear mission and vision is very important for any organization. The best way to have a holistic mission and vision is to engage
all workferce of an orgoenization. For this purpose, the QD department brought on board Ms. Rubina lamal, a well-known consultant
who specializes in leadership ond development trainings, to orgonize compony-wide sessions with all fiers of employees. She held one
on ana sessions with all Chief and General Manager level executives fo find out the key challenges they face, key desirable/undesirable
behaviors in employees, how they feel obout IDAP and in what way roles con be ployed in arder to achieve IDAP's mission in fulure.
The same sessions were conducted with the employees, in which they were osked to do o SWOT analysis ond other exercises through
which the key competencies, challenges and what their feelings ore towards the orgonizafion were derived.

+ Organizational Health Survey

IDAP adopts a helistic approach by aiming to provide the best possible work environment, tools and resources to its employees. To
create o more vibrant work environment that promotes an engaging werk culture, the OD department lounched o company-wide survey
to evaluate the pulse of the erganization by taking direc! feedback from people on various aspects of the wark enviranment, job safisfoe-
tion, progressive career growth and employee engagement. The findings of this survey provided voluoble date points in developing
action plans and rolling out new initiafives,

* Collaboration with Oxford Policy Management (OPM) Pakistan

IDAP has portnered with OPM, a research center at the University of Owford which is primarily focused on working in the development
sector by equipping the Government of Pokistan with the copocity to build sustainable government structure by providing consultancy
services in seclors like health, public sector management, financial management, climate change, educalion, econemic development,
poverty ond social protection and more. The OD department at IDAP will utilize OPM’s services in various capacities for the purpose of
developing and delivering world closs troining programs fo IDAP's employees as well os to the other government organizations,




Internal Audit Department

The internal Audit team’s achisvemants this yvear include the successful complation of Annual Audit for the yeor endad 30 June 200 6; suc-
cessful completion of PPRA Audit for the yeor ended 30 June 2014; hining of procurement review, finoncial adviser ond HR process im-
provement cansultants; implementation of cloud based accounling software ond implementation. of cloud based Iransaction review and
approval software,

Az IDAP was a newly established Auvthority, 1his meant that all internal processes and systems had to be developed ond implemented from
scratch. I wos necessary lo implement an accounting system in order to coler fa the accounting and finonce needs for doy fo day running
of the Authority ond ensure real fime vpdotes of IDAP ond is projects’ fimanciol pesition. In order to cater te this need, o smaoll cloud bosed
gystam was implemented which ensures thot all fnancial aspects of the Autharity were managed with occess to oll key stoff for bath moni-
toring ond pasting of informaotion on the &yslem.

The hiring of consultants invalved o requirement assessment and development ond subsequent opproval of TORs. Also involved wos the
development of evaluation eriterio and preparafion, approval end circulation of RFR Bidders werne then evaluoted and finally hired.

Az per the IDAP Act, on annual audit needs fo be condudted for each financial year. The annual oudit for the year ending 30 June 2014
wos carned out, The aim of annual auditis to ensure thot the financial reports of the Authority reflect o “frue and fair™ position. An external
audit firm was hired to conduel the audit with The Internal Audit feam's focilitation, Further clesure of all audin Tindings wos conducied by
the Internol Audit ieam. The relevant audit report had no audit objeclions ond a clean repart was issued,

IDAP was randomly selecled by PPRA 1o chock that oll the procurement conducted by IDAF was in compliance with PPRA rules, For this pur-
pose, PPRA hired on oudit firm, which reviewad all the documents of procurement. The Tnfernal Audit teom focilitoted and closed ol oudit
findings. The management letter provided by the auditor did not hove ony ohservation regording non-compliance.




o T =3 B | Y N BB N N

Procurement & Contracts (P&

The Procurement & Contracts Department is responsible for procurement of engineering consulloncy services and controctors, The depait-
ment's staff has diversified work experience ranging fram private ond public seclar chents, consultants and confractars. This varied experi-
ence of feom members hos contributed lowards the adaptation of unigue ond fost poced project requirements,

PAC ensures that all procurements are made in an open, fair and ethical manner o promate healthy competition. Every procurement ond
confract signing is done under strict complionce of Public Procuremen! Regulotory Authaority [PPRA) guidelines. In cose of ony ambiguity,
guidance is sought directly from PPRA to aveid any misprocurament,

Selection criterin for consuliants and contractors is mode objective ond clear. Ambiguities are minimized by deleting any subjective selec-
tion criteria. Bids are open 1o the public with all documentary evidence os required by PPRA rules ond regulalions. Through ransparent
procurernant and foir contract terms, the PEC deparment has estoblished frust with many national and international bidders. Due ta this
reason many national and infemahonal bidders parficipate in the public procurement progess for the first fime. This year P&C hos success-
fully procured and signed conlract agreements for 11 engineering consultancies and 27 contraclors. Furthermere, PBC provides assistonce
to other departments for procurement of goods, services and individual consultoncies.

The department is committed 1o timely and cost-effective deliveronce of construction prajects. It hos attracted o number of specialized con-
sultonts ond confractors from nationol and international morkets. P&C has effectivaly communicated the Government of Punjab’s vision of
effactive public service fa oll stakeholders. To date, confractors/consultants have offered o collective voluntary discount of PKR 4 hillion.
PEC haos standardized procurement and canfrocl documents Tor enginearing consulloncy and construction works 1o cater for the specfic re-
guiraments of IDAP keeping in view the PPRA guidelines. The depariment provides solutions ond gisidelines for challenges that arisa during

the construction process,

P&C has sutcessiuily completed procurement processes of a number of projects that will contribute granily towards the healthcore sactor
of Pokistan. These projects includes Pokistan Kidney & Liver Insfitute and Reseorch Center (PKLI & RC), Recep Tayyip Erdogan Hospital
[RTEH) Expansion Project Muzoffargarh, Maother and Child Care Hospital (MCCH] Murree, Site Housing Complex ond Auditorium for
Quaid-e-Azom Thermal Power Plant {QATPL) and Punjob Agriculture Food ond Drug Authority (PAFDA| Complesx.
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Legal Department
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I2AFs Legal Depariment wos imvalved in ergonizing o number of importont agreements pertaining to the vorious infrastructure develop-
mant projects currently undemwoy and for those planned in the future, [DAR entered infa an agresmant with the Pakistan Kidney and Liver
Instibule and Research Cenfre (PEL! & RC) whereby IDAP wos appainted os the Execuling Agency for construction of the PELL & RC and for
fhe provissan and meaintengnce of o System Inlegroter and Hospital Monogement Information Systermn (HMIS) to be ufilized af the PKLI &
RC.

The Legol Department also drafted an agreement fer the Recep Taywp Erdogon Hospital (RTEH] Expansion Project, oppointing IDAP os the
Execufing Agency for canstruction woeks and procurement of requisite medical equipment. The Haspital is being constructed in Muzaffar.
garh in order fo provide free of cost medicol services fo all potients imespective of their background orstatus. Also drafted wos an ogres-
maent between the Primary ond Secondory Healthcore (P&SH) and IDAP for the revamping of DHGQYTHG hespitals in Punjah. Furher
amendmants were entared inte, in arder 1o enhance the scope of work of the project ta include 15 Emergencies. An agreament between
Principal, Khowajo Muhommad, Sofdor Medical College and Hospital, Sialkot and IDAP wos also drofted. IDAP wos appeinted os Exequt-
img Agency by the Principal, for provision of missing specialies Tor upgradation of DHC) Hospilal Siolkol le Teoching Hospital Siatkot.

Dither agreements prepored include those signed by the Punjob Agriculiure Food and Drug Authority [PAFDA] for the construclion of PAFDA
Complex/Science Enclave; between IDAP and LKPC Tor the construction of the civil works, including related consullancies, of the Lohore
Knowledge Park and between the School Education Department and [DAP for conducting the Third Party Validation (TPY) of dossrooms
constructed by DFID under the School Consiruction ond Rehabilitation Programme) Humgodam. The Legal Department also negotioted
and finalised the agreemaent between [DAF and Ohdord Policy Monagement, Limited [OPM) for the provision of Public Seclor Manogemen
Consultoncy Services. OPM will provide IDAP with nofioral and internafional consultants and provide quality services which shall add value
to |DAP and its client services.




An agreement wos olse entered inte between |DAP ond Speciolized Health Core and Medicol Education [SHC&ME)] Department for the es:
tablishment of Hapatitis Clinics and Gl Deportments in Tertiory Care Hospitals in Punjab. IDAR is to oct as the executing agency for the con.
struction of three new Light Gouge Steel (LGS| Greenfield striclures for Hepafitis Clinics af the following sites;

« Allama lghal Medeial College Lohore
* King Edward Medical Callege for Women, Loheore
+ Mishtor Medical Cellege, Multan

Ohher agreements prepared include those betwean [DAP and P&SH for the establishment of o warehouse for blomedical equipmernt and
hetween IDAP ond the SHCEME Deparfment for fhe astablishment of two palhelegy and one radiclogy laboralories and o medical siore
depot. IDAP also entered info an ogreement with the informaticn Technology University (ITU), The agreement was signed by Mi. Mujahid
Fhardil, CEO, |DAP and Mr. Umar Saif, Viee Chancellor, ITU. The agreament maokes |DAP responsible for the moster planning, design ond
construchion of the main compus of the (T, sprecd over 183 ocres of land on Moin Borki Road, Lahore.

An ogreement was also enfered into batween SHCEME Department and IDAP tor the revamping of Jinnoh-Hospitel Lahare. The scope of
the project includes upgrading the current focilifies of Jinnoh Heospital so that it is better equipped to deal with the growing healthcare
needs of the people of Palasian, Another important ogreaman signed was with the Energy Deperimenl of the Government of the Punjab,
whareby |DAP was appointed as the Executing Agency for the establishment of o sfate-of-the-art Energy Resource Cenire (ERCY. This projed
Invalves the construction of o unigue, one of o kind, energy efficient building.




Planning & Design (P&D) Department

The Planning & Design Department (PED] ab IDAP hos vanious coles. Thess include preparalion and review of PC- 15, PC-lls and feasibility
studies; processing ond finalizing of coniract ond controct omend ments; prepanng project briefs and project scope of work; project screen.
ing and scope identtheation and review/preparation of TORs; porficipoton in pre-qualification of consultants, avaluating technical and fi-
nancial proposals and review and preporction of concept design; deloiled design, tender documents. Also included Is menitoring design
and ossisling in consfruction suppert; review of moterial submittals, pre-final ond final Inspections; process and eppreval of the poymants
of the consullants; design management and coordination with all olher departments and fiaising with clients in having their approvals on
the design submitials,

These aspects were handied by the Department for projects invalving the revamping of 40 existing DHG & THG Haspitals of Punjab; re-
vamping of exisling 85 THG Hespilals of Punjab; Allamo ighal Specialized Hospital, Siolket |AISH); Quaid-e-Azom Thermal Power Limited
{Steff Housing); Hepalifis Prevention Treatment Pregrem [HPTP); Polaston Kidney & Liver Insfitute & Research Center (PKLI & RC); Mether &
Child Caore Hospifal (MCCH), Murree; Recep Tayyip Erdogon Hospitol (RTEH); Medical Stere Depot, Lohare; construction of Training Lob
at Punjab Forensic Science Agency (PFaAL; establishment of Punjab Agriculfture, Food & Drug Awthority Labs at Lohore [FAFDA); Information
Technelegy University (ITU}; revamping of Jinnah Hospetal, Lahare; construchon of Energy Resource Cenlor; Lahore Knowledge Pork; Uri-
versity of Murres; Punjob Danish School & Excellence Center (PDAEC) and the Aiwar-g-lgbal Complex, Lahore.

Achievemenls of the Department include Ihe revew of all design submittals and ensured compliance of he déliverables with TORs; review
and analysis of eoch fosk assigned as par TORs/Stendords set forth ot the commeancament of the projedt; preporation and shoring of con-
ceptual design ond templates of docements internally and with the consultants for their better understanding of the required stendords ond
the anlicipated quality of werk, Torgets and deadlines were mod by the Prejec! Coordinators and Projec! teams through canfinuous fol-
ow-up with consultants and weekly project stofus reports. PED also rofionolized project scope and budgets through value engineering and
peer reviews ond achieved volume and accuragy of work o the assigned standaords. Tasks and ossignments were prioritized to minimize
bocklog, Team members were ossigned lor fraimngs in new soffware and prafessional developmont courses for copacity building and
equal cppartunities weare given to all employees 1o lecrn and padorm in o conducive erviranment. The PED teom infroduced design and
document control system for efficient freceability and systemized dota archiving and inter-departmenial correspondence on projects




Project Management (PM) Department

Tha IDAP Project Manaogement [PM] Department is helping ensure the smaoth running of the projed revamping existing DHQ ond THG
Haspitals of the Punjab. The project focuses on revamping existing hospitals by improving the sites with medern architecture and improved
treatment facilities for the genarol public. This is a fost trock project spanning all over fhe Punjob from Attock 1o Rojonpur district, it encom-
posses 26 DHG Hospitals, including mojor DHQ Hospitols ke DHQ Attack, DHQ Mionwali, DHG Jhalum, DHQ Vehor, DHG Bohawal-
nogar, DHG Layyah and DHG Muzeffargorh; while the 16 THQ hospitals include, THQ Hazor, THG Shahkot, THQ Gojra, THG Chicha-
watni, THQ Burewolo, THQ Tounsa Sharl and THQ Ahmaodpur Eost. The project alse includes 13 individugl emeargency umits of THQ hos-
pitals, Hepatitis Treatment and Prevention Pragram (HPTP) Clinics are olso within the scope of the project.

Project scope includes civil works in different clinical focilifies including but not imited to, upgrading fogode with EFIS; providing full body
porcelain files; aluminum doorfwindews; folse ceiling: paint: ramps upgrodation; special treatment for operation theoters with epoxy,
amaong others, Also included in the scope is improving ensting Public Health System in all the hospitals; internal and external electrification
works: upgrading of existing seweroge and water supply lines; addifion of filirafion planis for providing cleon water to pafients, and exist-
ing roads and slorm waler drainage systems are olso being impraved,

There ore numerous posifive impocts of this project which will ba felt by the people of Punjob. Almost 4000 patients per hospital per day
will be served on a doily bosis with inlermnaotional stlandard facilities and such upgradalion will beost the imoge of general public towards
government hospifals for ocquiring guality treatment. Hospitals of overall 7000 plus bed copacity with o covered creo of approximately
3,534,533 square feet will be upgroded, Potients will be served with clean drinking water due to moderm filtration plonts. Another major
positive impact will be that BD hopatilis patients per day per focility will be treated in internations| standard HPTP Clinics,

The P teom hos ochieved numerous successes this yeor, Thase include DHG Hospitals, emergency wards, OPDs, diclysis words, surgicol
wards, Irauma centers, physiotherapy units, CCUs, ICUs, pediatric wards, gynecology words, major and mino eperation thealres, In THGQ
Hospitals, many of the OPDs, operation theotres, administration blocks, dengue wards have been handed over and ore fully cperotional.
HFTP Centers ot DHQ Bokkhar, DHGQ Mianwali, DHG Morowal, DHG Jhelum, DHGQ Bohawolnagor, DHG Khonewa!, DHG Kasur, DHGY
Okara Morlh were completed in récord fime, Individuol emergencies in THG Hospitals; TH@ Hosonabdal, THQ Kol Memin, THQ Pindi
Bhaotfion kove also been completed.



Technaology & Gi5 teams inifiated the following projects:

1. Micrasoft PowerBl Dashboords: Follawing two inferoctive dashboards were mode for affective representation of the doto related 1o IDAP
Prajects.

o |DAF Projects Dashboard: A comprebansive and inferoctive dolobase was designed on Microsoft Sharepoint cantaining impartant infar-
mation regarding all the projecis of IDAP oeross Punjab. This datebose was linked with the PowerBl and requisite doshboard with infor-
mation regarding name, scope, oreas, jurisdicion, finanzes ond was further supplemented with physicol progress updotes,

« |DAP Projects Tracking Dashboard: The doshboard was designed with specific focus on the losks in the pipeline for every projed high-
[ighting the ones that are overdue, dus or vol fo come, thereby focililating projects supervision

7. Micrasoft PowerApps: A specialised fool that offers funcionality similor to thot of PowerBl doshboards on maobile devices. Interactive and
eosy-to-gecess opps weie designed and lounched allowing eccess 1o updaled information regarding all of the prejects on mobile
phanes.

3. GI5 Dalabase for IDAP Projects: All the project silos were geo-referenced and plofled on GIS. For bolter visualization, o medium-res sal-
ellite image beoring spofinl resolution of 02 meters hos also been prepored for the whole province. The satellite images consist af 31
tiles and these files can be used while working in specific areos;

4, Systern Integrafion Services for PELI: IDAF is providing 1T Systemn [nfegrotion services for PEL| project. This includes an off-premises dote
center which would serve os o DR site, on-premises dofo center facility on 2,000 square feet area, WAN based on wireless and fiber,
End User Dowices, Hospitol Manregement Infarmalion System (HMI5), Buillding Monogement System (BMS!, BEdra Low Vollage (ELY) sys
tarns, and networking infrastruciure for the complete constructed oreo.

5. Implementalion of Enterprise Resource Planming (ERP): Keeping in wew currenl and vpeoming infrastruciure development projects
across Punjab and an ever-growing workforce there is o dire need for outemated processes of business funcions including but nat limit-
ed ta Finonce, Procurement, and Humaon Resource which would help the teoms ta better colloborote, onalyse ond occelerate perfor-
monce. Currently, lendering for ERP is in process and implementation will begin seon
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The Cammunicafions team is responsibla for intemal and exdernal communications with stakehaldars that include the general public, other
government badies, consultants and current and prospective employees, ameong athers; This yeor the Communications teom has under-
toker o number of important initiatives and projects. These include using sociol medio platforms like Focebook, Instagram and Twitter
mora octively to inform the general public of the impartant wark and prejects that IDAP underakes; tha sharing of IDAPs success stories
in the form of blogs and arficles and on increasea in employes engogement through fun contests and compefitions run on IDAP's Focebook
poge, such as the IDAP Togline and Photo Contests,

The team has also worked on imporiant publicafions including the IDAP Annual Repod for the year ended June 2016 and o corporate pro-
file. Another important inifiotive thot took ploce this yeor wes the re-design of the IDAP lego. It wos important for IDAP fo stay up to dote
with design trends and ta refresh the eriginal lage. The new IDAP loge demensirales 6 contemporary dasign which simplifies the ariginal,
mara complex logo, making it medern, disfinct and unencumbered, without losing the original brond idenfificatfion,

We hove olso worked on and launched the new IDAP website this vear. It wos important to lounch a completely new, professional, modamn
design, engaging websife for visitors, By adding better content incliding arficles, phatos and videos, IDAP con be better represented fo oll
infernad and axternal stakeholders.

The Headguorers/Business Development (HGI/BD) wing of IDAP is primarily responsible for ossisting oil other wings of IDAF with mattars
perlaining o communicolion and coordination with all external stakeholders, induding, bul not imited 1o, Public Administralion Depar-
ments, IDAP Board Members, Standing Committess of the Caobinet, Chief Minster’s Office and Commissioner's Office. Well versed in
Public Sector jorgon and idiesyncrasies, HQ/BD wing plays @ vital role in acting os linison beatween IDAP wings ond exfernal siakeholders
fo ansure seambess communication bebeeen the twao resulling in timely and occurate execution of warks, Additionally, HQ/BD wing vigilani-
|y zeeks out opporunities to expand IDAP's porttolio, bath in the public ond private seclor,




A STEP AHEAD IN







i~

o W i

e GRS
> SN LIVER R T

L i
L T —
] i

o)

Pakistan Kidney and Liver Institute (PKLI) and
Research Centre, Lahore

Pakistan Kidney and Liver Institute (PKLI} & Research Centre iz on 820 bed charity project in Lahore. I will be o state-of- the-art center of
excellence in clinical care, fenching and researching in s lized areas of kidney, bladder and liver dise including kidney and liver
failure, treated with transplantatian, IFwall not only provide free of cost medical se o the poor, bul will alse provide employmaent 1o
more than 5,000 paople; including troining for dedors; nurses and poramedics. The project also includes a Hepatifis Prevention and Treat-
ment Program (HFTP) Clinic based on o stesl froma structure which has been complated ond handed over to the clignt,

PELI facility will be extendoble to 1,500 beds and will include 100 bad emergency center, 100 bad ICU, 100 bed out-patiant dialysis facility,
500 bed in-patient focility, 20 operating roams and 10 same day surgary su PELI is situeted on 50 acres of land in the Lohore Knowd-
edge City localed between DHA Phose 6 and Bedion Reod. will alse provide top quality training 1o medical personnel and dodors
that are conducting cutting-edge research to further increase knowledge in these areas. Additionally, PELl & BEC is also supported by o prov-
ince-wide network of Hepatitis Prevenfion and Treatment Pragram [HETP) clinics.




IDAP

Mother and Child Care Hospital (MCCH), Murree

Mather & Child Care Hospital, Murres will howse o lacility of | 28 beds, This hospital will cater fo motemity issues of women and diseoses
of infants in the hilly area of Murmres. Hoving an area of about 38 kanals, the site is currently being used by the heolthcore department and
hos existing features like residences, clinic and porking for ombulances. The hospital will include 100 beds for patients, an emeargency
block, OPD, diagnostic department, wards and delivery suifes, ombulances, car parking and privale reoms.




Recep Tayyip Erdogan Hospital (RTEH),
Muzaffargarh

RTEH starfed its operations in July 2074 with 60 beds and within 12 months of itz inceplion, 40 new beds were added.

Tha master plan of RTEH expansion project includes building o teaching hospital, medical college, nursing college ond other amenifies on
113 acres of lond nexd to the existing hospital.

The main constituents of the hospital expansion include OFDs, emergency block, rodiclogy, endoscopy, dialysis, futurisfic modular OTS,
wirrds, cardiac care units, infensive care wniks, surgicol infensive care units, blood bank, lnbarotory, coté and o kitchen, Addifionally, the
state-afthe-ort hospital incdudes an information kiosk, vilals, phormocy and o waiting orea Ihat con occommodate. aboul 500 palients,
The energy center houses the most contemporary electrical and mechanical equipment required for smooth running of the hospital,

The hospital has been equipped with fop of the line medical equipment such as MR, CT Scan, X-Rays, Fluorescopy, Lithotripsy, Ultrasound
ond Endoscopy machines, os well os with Dialysis unifs. Technologies and tools for anoesthesio, monitoring, laboratary, sterifization, dental
procedures, waste manogemeni, and refrigeration hove olse been employved for the banefit of thase sesking healthcare services in the

area,




IDAP will establish three loboratores specializing in Agriculture, Food and Drugs respectively, in o new complex for the Punjob Agriculiure,
Food and Drug Authorty {PAFDA) on &4 Kanals of land near Thokar MNioz Boig, Loheore,

The PAFDA project consists of the sample bulding, moin building (9 stories) ond on energy cenfre with o telal covered area of 314,733
squore feal, It hos a state-of-the-art auditoricm with o seoting copacity for 500 persons which will be used tor conferences and froining.

All three loborotories will be equipped with the lalest lab apparatus and equipmeant.

The PAFDA Complex is being established tor forensic examination and testing of tertilizers, pesticides, food and drugs.
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The Punjob Farensic Science Agency [PF3A) is a full service forensic laboratory offering fourteen areas of exomination. PF3A's services in-
clude receiving physical evidence from law enforcament agencies on criminal and civil coses and analyzing the forensic evidence for opex
cours, nvestigoting ogencies, proseculors and ofher stakeholders

IDAP is designing and constrocting o new laboretory building for PESA to enhance s facility for providing services to fow énforcement
ific staff. This new Tocility will belp impreve the counlry’s criming| justice system, The new

agencies ond for the training and work of scie
foransic troining laboratory building will be established ot o site adjecent to the current PF3A building on Multan Boad, Lohore.



The Medical Stare Depat (M3D) is a central warehouse for the bulk purchase of medicine/equipment for the health department at provincial and
federal level,

IDAP has constructed new barracks and raded exisfing banracks which hos resulted in o sign

icont imcredse in sforage spoce. Another

{hat 1t

bt systern of moedicines supply. I will alsa
ensure delivery of safe and high quality pharmaceutical and reloted medical supplies to support the healthcare system in Punjob by devel-
;."IE a comprehansive supply chain managemant system and installation of latest warehouse maonagement sysiem.

5 will improve the slorage capacily, inv wy management and dish
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Revamping of DHQ & THQ Hospitals Across Punjab

IDAR i o provide efficient and effective hecithears facilities te the Fopolafion of the Punfob grovinee by vpgroding DHG ond THE hos-
pitals. For o betler, mere effedive heolthcare system of primary and secondory levels, IDAP is revomping |6 Tehsil Headguarters [THG
Heispitols, 13 Tahuil Heodqueaners [THG] Emnsrgencies, 26 Dislricl Hoadguariers |DHG) Hospitals and 19 Hepatitis Frevention and Treols
et Clinics (HPTCs) all over the province of Punjab in the first phase and revomping 85 Tehsil Headquarers [THG Haspitals in Ihe second
phose, The work includes upgrading buildings; medicol equipment and infrastruchice: Improvements ore being made in these hosgitals in
the general wards, ICUs, CCUs, oparation thealres, emergency deparimants, burd units, OPDs, pedictric wards, dialysis units, gynscology
departments and administrative blocks.

Projec includes the DHQ hospitals in:

Fousiar
Shaikhupura
Afteck

Chiriiol
Khonewal

Toba Tek Singh
dhany
Mimnwli
Bhokkor
Khiusab

Veharn
Behowalnager
Fakpotton
Leyyah
Muzaffargarh
Rajanpur
Ladhran
Chelewal
Menkano Sakk
Jhelum
Shaikhupura Children Comples
Hafizabod
Mandi Bohauddin
Ckara Marth
CHeaira South
Marowal

Thie THG hospilals being upgraded ora lscated in:

Kamoke
Gupar Khon
Croska

Hazre

Esa Khel
Murpur Thal
Mian Chanms
Chichewmairi
Burewala
Gojra
Chishtian
Arifwalo
Taursa Sharil
Shujaabad
Ahened Por Enosl
Keat Adedu

The 19 THE Emergencies beihg revamped inchude:

Hozon Abdal
Bindi Bhation
Kt Mearmin
Lingatpisr
Dumyapur
Kenmmalic
Tondliawala
Kellur Kot
Shahkkot
Jompur
Heraanalbad
Shorkal
Mailsi
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Upgrading of DHQ Hospital, Sialkot to Teaching
Hospital

DHQ Hospilals in Siolkol are large hospitals in Punjob which are being upgraded by IDAR Allama lgbal Memorial Hospital (AIMH] hos o
bed strength of 400 beds whereas Government Sardor Begum Hospital hos 132 beds, moking it o total strength ot 534 beds: These haspi-
tals have basic clinical departments required for the training of undergraduate students and are eguipped with good diegnostics facilitias.

Khawajo Muhammad Safdar Medical Caollege will alse be further strengthened by the upgrading of these DHQ Hospitals in Sialkol.
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Guoid-e-Azam Thermal Power (Fvl) Limited [QATPLY is 0 company owned by the Govemment of the Punjab. QATPL is in the process of sef-
ting up a 1180 MW RLMG basad Combined Cyele Pawer Plant ot Bhikki, District Sheikhupura. In addition ta the main plant land, GATPL
lities by IDAR These include o Site Hows-

ocquired approximately 40 acres of land adiacent o the main plant for construchion of varous fac
ing Complex which includes one aparfment building for o staff copocity of 30; T8 houses (with 3 bedrooms, 1 living ond 1 kifchen); a mini
supermarkel and a public playground. Alsa constructed by IDAP is an auditarium with 6 sedting capacity of 200 ond a covered area of

1 8,000 squarne fect
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Jinnah Hospital Lahore, initially.a 1100 Bed tertiary care hospital, alter addition of new specialties/departments and completion ot o fourth
flaar, will have owver 1500 heds. The hospital is attached fo the Alfoma Igbal Medical College and provides teaching facilitias and training
to undergroduate medical students,

IDAP assessed the present building focilities through its speciolized consultanis to gouge the quality systems present in the hospital, A report
prepared by the consullants hos provided the basis for the upgroding and modernizing work being carried oul. 11 15 essenlial to remove
the prmary infrastructural faults: which include resolving general mointenonce ond repoir issues, improving sanifary systems ond wash-
rooms, rehobilifation ond upgrading of electricity systems and alevators:



IDAP will be building o world class [T University bo meel the growing needs of industries, government ond civil sociely of the rapidly growing
provinciol copifal. The maoin objective is to build stote-of-the- art infrastructure for convening and conducting aocademic, research, adminis-
frative and co-curnicular activities:

The proposed site of the IT yniversity is near Barki Road, Lahore and will be spread over an areo of 224 .8 acrés, The university will include
4 academic hlocks, an auditorivem complex, o student center, a library, a mosque, student hostels, on executive development center, foculty
housing and o sports comples,

This university aims io educate the next generation of innovators, enginears dnd scientists to develop technologies that will drive the coun-
Iry’s economic growlb, Il s focused on solving locolly relevant problems with emphasis on research and enlrepreneurship by providing o
rich learning environment that builds upon the student’s experence and existing copabilifies.



An Energy Resource Center will be constructed in Lohora. This building will be energy efficient, using local regenerative energy scurcaes
such as solar enargy, 1o craate o close fa zera-emission building. Local building materials and shdes will be used o focus on sustainahility
icient building concepl easily replicablbe for fulure pri-

and energy efficiency in order 1o reduce investment costs ond 1o moke the enargy o
vate sector building projects.

This Certer will be wsed as an office building for the Energy Deportment, Governmaent of the Punjob and its affiliale deportmaents currently
located all over the city, The building will also provide on educotional spoce for disseminating information on the concept of energy effi-
ciency & conservation (EE&C). There will afse be an exhibition room to display renewable energy technologies os well as auditariums for
seminars on EEAC and other related topics such os energy audits, ESCO marke! creation and stondards and labelling of appliances,
amaong ofhers.

Thie Energy Resource Center will provide a number of economie, environmental and social benefits. First and foremast, it will help main-
stream renewable snergy (RE) and help reduce the country's dependence on any single source, especially imporied fossil tuels. This will
reduce risks in the areas of supply disrupfions and price fluctuation. RE options con supplement naticnal energy supply options in the coun-
Iry, improve produectivity and provide employment and business opporunities. Social benefits of the project include provision of a techno-
logically advanced working environment, energy conservation, following of green economic practices and long ferm cost efficiency. Envi-
ronmental bensfits sich as reduction in the amaunt of carben dioxide emissions through installation of clean energy systems would also
be achieved.
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ore Knowledge Park Compony (LKPC) in 2014, where o complete knowledge
based environmeant would be deve e fit, public sector company for the d spment of knowledge and
science parks in Punjab, owned by the Higher . sparrt s vertunen! of the Punjab, The s fo credle clusler inlerac-

tion of universities, industry and R&D fo drive an innovation and anfrepreneurship ecosystem.

The Lohome KEnowledge Park (LKP) is the Hoagship project of LKPC, covering on area of 852 gcres in Lohore, LEP will create linkoges and syn-
ergy between ocademia and the corporate world in areas that fead into the knowledge industry by developing futuristic sustoinable knowl-
edge hubs, The LKP plan includes clusters for the areas of Life Sciences & Biotechnology; Manufacturing & Engineering Sciences; Informn-
fion & Communicafion Techno and Creative Arls & Media, The design i 5 this buildin o public university, o technical and re-
search university, an applied science instiute, an infemational elementary scho international scierce high schosl, o business school,
a design school, engineering and [CT hubs and o bistechnology center, Other facilities will include park vention centers, o salar park
and o sperts and recreofional complox.

LEP aima fo make Punjob ond Pakistan, South Asio’ iar ination for knowledge. The Park will previde worl s educotional op-
parlunilies for the country s yauth, who will apply kn 3 dress nafional chollenges and capture opparunifies for innovalion pres-
ent in industry ond sociaty.
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This project will provide state-of-the-art gastroenterslogy and hepotalogy healtheare services to the community ot lorge under one roaf in
pre-exisling sel-ups of lerliary care hespitals. These clinies and departments will provide treatment te patients suffering from liver diseases
ond gostroinfestinal disorders and provide treatment fo patients sultaring from infectious hepatitis, particularly HBV and HCV infections.
Thaze medical facilitias will halp trace the contacts of the infectious hepatitis patients and develop and implement pravenfion sfrofegies.
Patients with fiver diserders such as melabolic lver disorders, auloimmune liver disvoses and ather infections of the liver will be treated. Di-
ognosis and treatment for other gostrointestinal diseoses like gostroesophogeal reflux disease, peptic ulcer disease, pancreatic disenses,
howel disenses and concers of the Gl fract and hepatobiliony systam will be previded. These clinics and departments will encourage high
guality research in fthe field of gostroenterology ond hepotelogy especially for postgroduate educalion



IDAR is building a Ceniral Pathology Loberatory in Lahore; a Central Pathelegy Laboratory in Mullan; o Radiology Loboratory at Jinnah
Haospital in Lahore and a Medical Slore Depat of King Edward Medical University of the Kala Shoh Kaku Compus.

The pathology loboratanes in Lohore and Multan will provide patholegy and diognostic services ot the highest standards which will help
in the pravision of ideal treatment plans for patients, Similarly, the rediology loboratory af linnah Hospital in Lahore will offer wide-ranging
radiology services including general rodiography and uiirasounds, allowing for patients fo get a guicker diagniosis and fer treatment plons
to be implemented effectively and efficiently.
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inics in Punjab

Miajor offorts are being mode fo tackle hepatifis in Pakistan, 19 Hepafitis Prevention and Treatment Chinics (HFTCs) ore being established
ot numerows locotions in Punjob under the Hepatitis Prevenfion & Treatment Program [HFTP). IDAFP has been building thesa clinics arouwnd
the pravinee to provide freatment to those infected with Hepaotitis B and C, free of cost

These will be localed of DHG Bhakkar, DHQ Mianwali, DHG Kasur, DHQ Sheikhupura, DHG Bohowalnagar, DHQ leblum, DHG Marow-
ol, DHG Khanewal, DHQ Jhang, DHQ Okara, DHG Muzoffargorh, DHQ Monkana Sohib, DHQ Attock, DHG Lodhron, DHG Shuja
Ahad, DHG Khushab, DHGE Pakpattan, DHQ Hafizabad and DHG Vehari, |DAF will help provide patients with access fo lop-class medical
facilites, renowned hepolitis expérs and the lolest medicines ol these Hepatitis Prevention & Trealment Program clinics. These pur-
pose-built clinics aim to help eliminate hapatitis from the country.
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EY Ford Rhodes Tel: -+9242 3577 8402-11

Charlered Accounlants Fox: +9242 3577 8412-13
26-B-1, 41k Floor, Poce Mall Building ey lhri@pk. ay.com
M.M. Alam Road, Gulberg-1l ay.com/pk

Building a better EO. Box 104, Lohore-54660

working world

Independent Auditor’s Report To The Authority

Opinion

Wi hove pudited (he vccomponying iinencol slalemonts of the Inlrastruciure Davelopmant Authorily of e Furjab (e Aulboniy®), which
campnse the stoterment of fnoncial postion os ot 30 Jene 2017, and the reloted income ond expenditure occount, stoterment of compre-
hereive iIncome, statemant of changes in fund ond stofement of cosh fiows for (he vear then anded, and notes 1o the financal stalaments,
ineluding o summory of significon) accouniing policies,

In our opinion, the accompanying financiol sfaiements present faldy, in all material respects, the financial position of the Aulharity os af
30 Jupe 2017, and iis inanciol performance and its cash lows for the yeor then ended in accordance wilh International Financlal Roport-
ing Stondords os opplicable in Pokistan.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted owur audi in ctcordance with Infernational Standards on Auditing (154s) as applicoble In Pakistan, Owi responsibilities under
ihase standords ore further described i ihe Audiler's Responsibllilies for the Audil of the Finoncial Siotements saclion of our report, 'Wa
ore - independent of the Autharity in oceordonda with the Infernafional Ethies Stondards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Profas-
sional Accounionts (IESBA Code) os adopied by the Instiule of Chartersd Accountants of Pakistan, together with the alhical requirements
iho! ore relevont o aur eudll of the finoncial stoloments in Pekiston and we hove fulfilled our ofher ethical rezponsibililios under thease -
guirements ond IESEA Code. Wa believe thal the audil svidence we hove ablained is sufficen) and opproprate o provide o badis fae aur
apinlan,

Other Information

Maragement is responsibla for the ather informalion, The alber informalion comprises |he infarmalion included in the Authioniy's Annisal
Repar, but doas nat includs the finencial dotements and our auditars repa 1hereon,

Cer opinton on the firondal stotements does not cover (he alher informalion ond we do nol express any lorm of ossuronce conclusion
tharaon.

Iri conneciion with cur oudil of 1he finenciol siotements, our respansibilily is 1o teod 1he other informalion ond, in daing so, consider wheth-
&r the othier informalion s metsnally incongistent with the financol stetements or o knewledoe obtalned in the audit or athandise oppeors
ta be materlally missiotad, If, basad an the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a moterial misstalement of this.other nfor-
malion, we ore required to repart lhal foct. We hove nothing 1o report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
Manogement is respansible for the preparation and fair presenfation of the financial statéments in accordonce with Infernafional Financial
Reporling Standords as opplicoble in Poldsan, and for suel internal control as monogement delormines js necossary lo enabl the prepo-
ration of finoncial slatements thot ara free from maoterial misstotement whether due fo froud or error.

in greporing the fnancial siolemanits, management is responsible Tor ossessing the Authorly's nhi!l’ly 1 comlifug oz o going concon, dis-
elosing, o5 applicoble, moters related 0 going cencern and using the going cancern basis of oocounting Unless mapogemertt elthar in-

tends ta liquidate the Autharity or fo cense operations, or has no realistic elternotive Bl to da <o,

These chorged with governonce ore responsible for oversesing the Autharity's hinonoal jeporting process.




Buillding a better
working world

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our ohieclives ore to obioin reosonahbla ossuronce about whether the finoncinl statemenis os o whole are free frem maotariol mis-
statemant, whather due to froud or erron, and o issve an guditor's report that includes our opinion, Recsonohble assuraonce is o
high leval of essurance, but is not a guaranies that an audil conduched in accordance with 1SAs will always delect o moterial mis-
stolement when it exists. Misslalements can orise from froud or error ond ore considered moteriol if, individuolly er in Ihe oogre-
gole, they could reasonably be sxpected fo influsnce the sconamic decisions of users token an the basis of these finoncial siate-
mienis,

Other matter

The finoncial stolements af tha Autharily for the pered ended 30 lune 20146 wore oudited by anather firm af Chortered Accoun-
jonis who expressed on unqualified opinfon doted 21 April 2017 on those finencial stolemants.

Eyr—aee

Chaorfered Accounlanis
Engogemenl Pariner: Sojjad Hussain Gill
Lohora: 17 March 2020
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Balance Sheet
As at 30 June 2017

2017 2016
Note Rupees Rupees
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property and equipment 5 96,170,173 59,446,076
Intangible assets 6 5,277,319 -
Long term advances and deposits 7 48,512,600 3,706,310
149,960,092 63,152,386
Current assets
Trade receivables 8 20,800,288 -
Advances 9 1,510,043,232 -
Trade deposits and short term prepayments 10 9,498,771 1,145,478
Tax refunds due from the Government 11,622,098 -
Cash and bank balances 11 6,730,199,341 422,131,718
8,282,163,730 423,277,196
8,432,123,822 486,429,582
FUNDS AND LIABILITIES
Fund and reserves
Fund balance - -
Non-current liabilities
Government grants 12 474,005,668 160,054,521
Advances from customers 13 6,724,700,430 300,000,000
7,198,706,098 460,054,521
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 14 1,086,875,157 26,375,061
Retention money payable 15 97,908,607 -
Deferred revenue 16 48,633,960 -
1,233,417,724 26,375,061
TOTAL FUNDS AND LIABILITIES 8,432,123,822 486,429,582
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 17 = -
The annexed notes from 1 to 29 form an integral part of these financial statements.
Chief Executive \Officer Member




Income and Expenditure Account
For the year ended 30 June 2017

For the
For the period from 24
year ended  August 2015 to
30 June 2017 30 June 2016
Note Rupees Rupees
INCOME
Income from services 18 50,363,388 -
Amortization of grant 19 254,453,353 28,751,479
Other income 20 115,024,037 -
419,840,778 28,751,479
EXPENDITURE
Administrative and general expenses 21 411,869,863 28,742,439
Finance charges 18,385 9,040
411,888,248 28,751,479
Surplus of income over expenditure before tax 7,952,530 -
Taxation 22 7,952,530 -
Surplus for the year / period after tax = -
The annexed notes from 1 to 29 form an integral part of these financial statements.
Chief Executive \Officer Member
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Statement of Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 30 June 2017

For the

For the  period from 24
year ended  August 2015 to
30 June 2017 30 June 2016
Rupees Rupees
Surplus for the year / period after tax - -
Other comprehensive income:
ltems to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods - -
ltems not to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods: - -
Total other comprehensive income - -
Total comprehensive income for the year / period = -
The annexed notes from 1 to 29 form an integral part of these financial statements.
Chief Executive |Officer Member




Statement of Cash Flows

Note Rupees Rupees
Surplus of income over expenditure before tax 7,952,530 -
Adjustment for non cash items:
Depreciation on property and equipment 5 14,226,158 1,160,005
Amortization on intangible assets 6 84,026 -
Assets written off = 102,245
Amortization of Government grant 19 (254,453,353) (28,751,479)
(240,143,169) (27,489,229)
Cash used before working capital changes (232,190,639) (27,489,229)
Effect of changes in working capital
Increase in current assets
Trade receivables (20,800,288) -
Trade deposits and short term prepayments (8,353,293) (1,145,478)
Long term deposits (44,806,290) (3,706,310)
(73,959,871) (4,851,788)
Increase / (decrease) in current liabilities
Trade and other payables 94,024,530 26,375,061
Deferred revenue 48,633,960 -
Advances from customers 5,969,902,116 300,000,000
6,112,560,606 326,375,061
6,038,600,735 321,523,273
Cash generated from operations 5,806,410,096 294,034,044
Taxes paid (19,574,628) -
Net cash generated from operating activities 5,786,835,468 294,034,044
Purchase of property and equipment 5 (45,829,179) (60,708,326)
Purchase of intangible assets 6 (5,361,345) -
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 4,018,179 -
Net cash used in investing activities (47,172,345) (60,708,326)
Grant received from the Government of the Punjab 12 568,404,500 188,806,000
6,308,067,623 422,131,718
422,131,718 -
6,730,199,341 422,131,718
The annexed notes from 1 to 29 form an integral part of these financial statements.
Chief Executive Member




Statement of Changes in Fund
For the year ended 30 June 2017

General Fund
Rupees

Balance as at 24 August 2015 -

Surplus for the period -

Balance as at 30 June 2016 -

Surplus for the year -

Balance as at 30 June 2017 -

The annexed notes from 1 to 29 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Chief Executive (Officer Member
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Notes to the Financial Statements

3.1

3.2

3.3

4.1

The Infrastructure Development Authority of the Punjab (“the Authority”) is an autonomous body of the Government of
the Punjab, established under the Infrastructure Development Authority of Punjab Ordinance, 2015 (“the Ordinance”).
The Ordinance was repealed by the Infrastructure Development Authority of the Punjab Act, 2016 (“the Act”) passed by
the Punjab Assembly on February 03, 2016, and the Authority is now governed by the Act. The principal objective of
the Authority is to plan, design, construct and maintain infrastructure in the province of Punjab using best international
practices to cope with development needs, and to hire international and local consultants and contractors for the
execution, management, operation and maintenance thereof as well as for other purposes. The registered office of the
Authority is situated at Ground Floor, 7 C-1, Gulberg lll, Lahore.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as applicable in Pakistan which have been adopted locally
by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP).

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except financial instruments which
are stated at fair value.

Use of estimates and judgments

The Authority’s significant accounting policies are stated in note 4 to these financial statements. Not all of these significant
policies require the management to make difficult, subjective or complex judgments or estimates. The following is intended
to provide an understanding of the estimates the management considers critical because of their complexity, judgment
of estimation involved in their application and their impact on these financial statements. Estimates and judgments are
continually evaluated and are based on historical experience, including expectation of future events that are believed to
be reasonable under the circumstances. These judgments involve assumptions or estimates in respect of future events and
actual results may differ from these estimates. The area involving a higher degree of judgments or complexity or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements is as follows:.

Contingencies

The assessment of contingencies inherently involves the exercise of significant judgment as the outcome of future events
cannot be predicted with certainty. The Authority, based on the availability of the latest information, estimates the value
of contingent assets and liabilities, which may differ on the occurrence/ non- occurrence of uncertain future event(s).

Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees which is the Authority’s functional and presentation currency.

The significant accounting policies which have been adopted in the preparation of financial statements of the Authority
are consistent with previous year except as described in Note 4.1.

New, amended standards and interpretations which became effective

The Authority has adopted, where applicable, the following accounting standards, amendments and interpretation of
IFRSs which became effective for the current year:

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements, IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities and IAS 27 Separate Financial
Statements — Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception (Amendment)

IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements - Accounting for Acquisition of Interest in Joint Operation (Amendment)



Notes to the Financial Statements

4.2

4.3

4.4

IAS 1 — Presentation of Financial Statements - Disclosure Initiative (Amendment)

IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment and IAS 38 intangible assets - Clarification of Acceptable Method of Depreciation
and Amortization (Amendment)

IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment IAS 41 Agriculture - Agriculture: Bearer Plants (Amendment)

IAS 27 — Separate Financial Statements — Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements (Amendment)

Improvements to Accounting Standards Issued by the IASB
IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations - Changes in methods of disposal
IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures - Servicing contracts

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures - Applicability of the offsetting disclosures to condensed interim financial
statements

IAS 19 Employee Benefits - Discount rate: regional market issue

IAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting - Disclosure of information ‘elsewhere in the interim financial report’

The adoption of the above amendments, revisions and improvements to accounting standards and interpretations did not
have any effect on the financial statement of the Authority.

Property and equipment
Owned:

Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is charged to income and expenditure account on a straight line method so as to write off the cost of an
asset over its estimated useful life at rates disclosed in Note 5 to the financial statements. Depreciation on additions is
charged on a pro-rata basis from the day on which the asset is put to use, while for disposals, depreciation is charged
up to the date of disposal of asset.

The asset’s residual values and useful lives are reviewed at each financial year end, and adjusted if impact on depreciation
is significant.

Normal repairs and maintenance are charged to income and expenditure account as and when incurred. Major
improvements and modifications are capitalized and the assets so replaced, if any, are retired.

Profit or loss on disposal of property and equipment represented by the difference between the sale proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset is included in income and expenditure account.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets, which are non-monetary assets without physical substance, are recognized at cost, which comprises
purchase price, non-refundable purchase taxes and other directly attributable expenditures relating to their implementation
and customization. After initial recognition an intangible asset is carried at cost less accumulated amortization and
impairment losses, if any. Intangible assets are amortized on a pro-rata basis from the day on which the asset is put
to use, while for disposals, amortization is charged up to the date of disposal of asset. The useful life and amortization
method is reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at each balance sheet date. The rates determined to amortize the
infangible assets are disclosed in note 6.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Authority becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument and de-recognized when the Authority loses control of contractual rights that comprise the financial
assets and in the case of financial liabilities when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or
has expired. Any gain or loss on derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities is included in the income and
expenditure account for the year.




Notes to the Financial Statements

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

All financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at cost, which is the fair value of the consideration given
and received respectively. These financial assets and liabilities are subsequently measured at fair value, amortized cost
or cost, as the case may be. The particular recognition methods adopted are disclosed in the individual policy statements
associated with each item.

Impairment
Financial assets

A financial asset is considered to be impaired if objective evidence indicate that one or more events had a negative effect
on the estimated future cash flow of that asset.

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortized cost is calculated as a difference between its
carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.

Individually significant financial assets are tested for impairment on an individual basis. The remaining financial assets
are assessed collectively in groups that share similar credit risk characteristics.

Non - financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Authority’s non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether
there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less cost to sell and value in use. Value in use is ascertained through
discounting of the estimated future cash flows using a discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risk specific to the assets.

Impairment losses, if any, are recognized in income and expenditure account.

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are carried at original invoice amount less an estimate for doubtful debts balances based on review of
outstanding amounts at the year end. Bad debts are written off when identified.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the statement of cash flow, cash and cash equivalents are stated at cost and comprise of cash in hand
and cash at banks in current and deposit accounts.

Trade and other payables

Liabilities for trade and other amounts payable are measured at cost which is the fair value of the consideration to be
paid in future for goods and services received, whether or not billed to the Authority.

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Authority has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events and
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect
the current best estimate.

Foreign currency transactions and translation

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the
transaction. Foreign exchange gains and losses on translation, if any, are recognized in the income and expenditure
account. Monetary items are translated at each balance sheet date whereas all non-monetary items are translated into
Pak Rupees at exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transaction.
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4.12

413

4.14

Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the financial statements only when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amount and the Authority intends either to settle on a net basis or to
realize the assets and to settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Taxation
Current:

Provision for current tax is based on taxable income for the year determined in accordance with the applicable law for
taxation of income. The charge for current tax is calculated using prevailing current tax rates or tax rates expected to apply
to the profit for the year, if enacted, after taking into account tax credits and tax rebates realizable, if any.

Deferred:

Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet liability method on all temporary differences, at the balance sheet
date, between the amounts attributed to assets and liabilities for financial reporting purpose and amounts used for
taxation purposes. Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the periods when the difference will
reverse, based on tax rates that have been enacted or substantially enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the assets can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related
tax benefit will be realized.

The Authority has not recognised a deferred tax asset during the year, as it is not considered probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which this can be realised.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Authority and revenue
can be reliably measured.

Income from services:

Income from project implementation (service fee) is recognized over the period for which project related activities are
going on, based upon stage of completion method. Stage of completion is measured by reference to cost incurred to
date as a percentage of total estimated cost for each contract.

Amortization of Grant:

Grants are initially recognized at fair value in the balance sheet when there is reasonable assurance that the grants will
be received and the Authority will comply with all the attached conditions, if any. Grants that compensate the Authority
for expenses incurred are recognized as grant income in the income and expenditure accounts on a systematic basis in
the same period(s) in which the expenses are incurred. When the grant relates to an asset, it is recognized as income in
equal amounts over the expected useful life of the related asset.

Mark up income:

Mark up income on bank deposits is recognized using effective interest rate method.

Compensated absences

The Authority provides a benefit to its employees for accumulating their annual earned leaves. Under unfunded scheme,
the employees are entitled to 21 days earned leave for each completed year of service. In case, an employee does not
avail his/her entire quota of the annual leave, the unutilized annual leaves up to a maximum of fifty percent (50%) of the
preceding year’s total annual leaves quota shall be carried forward for upto two (02) financial years. Provisions are made
to cover the obligation under the scheme and are charged to income and expenditure account.
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Standards, Interpretations and Amendments to Published Approved Accounting Standards that are not yet effective

The following standards, amendments and interpretations with respect to the approved accounting standards as applicable
in Pakistan would be effective from the dates mentioned below against the respective standard or interpretation:

Effective Date
(Annual periods

Standard or Interpretation beginning on or after)

IFRS 2: Share-based Payments — Classification and Measurement of

Share-based Payments Transactions (Amendments) 01 January 2018

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and IAS 28 Investment in
Associates and Joint Ventures - Sale or Contribution of Assets between

an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture (Amendment) Not yet finalized

IAS 40 Investment Property: Transfers of Investment Property (Amendments) 01 January 2018

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures - Disclosure Initiative - (Amendment)

01 January 2017

IAS 12 Income Taxes — Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for
Unrealized losses (Amendments).

01 January 2017

IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts: Applying IFRS 9 Financial Instruments with
IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts — (Amendments)

01 January 2018

IAS 40 Investment Property: Transfers of Investment Property (Amendments)

01 January 2018

IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration

01 January 2018

IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

01 January 2019

In addition to the above standards and amendments, improvements to various accounting standards have also been
issued by the IASB in December 2016. Such improvements are generally effective for accounting periods beginning on
or after 01 January 2018. The Authority expects that such improvements to the standards will not have any impact on the
Authority’s financial statements in the period of initial application.

Further, the following new standards have been issued by IASB which are yet to be notified by the SECP for the purpose
of applicability in Pakistan:
IASB effective date
(Annual periods

Standard beginning on or after)

IFRS 9 — Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement 01 January 2018

IFRS 14 - Regulatory Deferral Accounts 01 January 2016

IFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with Customers 01 July 2018

IFRS 16 — Leases 01 January 2019

IFRS 17 — Insurance Contracts 01 January 2021

The above standards and amendments are not expected to have any material impact on the Authority’s financial
statements in the period of initial application.
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Leasehold Electrical Furniture Computer
improvements| and office | and fixtures | equipment Vehicles Total
equipment
At 01 July 2016 Rupees
Cost - 4,655,845 6,565,029 11,659,767 37,717,705 60,598,346
Accumulated depreciation - 113,947 38,666 704,615 295,042 1,152,270
Net book value - 4,541,898 6,526,363 10,955,152 37,422,663 59,446,076
Movement during the year:
Additions - cost 13,684,458 6,486,063 10,233,926 24,563,987 - 54,968,434
Disposals
Cost - 1,523,863 2,128,220 863,333 - 4,515,416
Depreciation - 185,078 127,070 185,089 - 497,237
- 1,338,785 2,001,150 678,244 - 4,018,179
Depreciation for the year 988,666 1,511,226 1,070,563 6,883,932 3,771,771 14,226,158
Closing net book value 12,695,792 8,177,950 13,688,576 27,956,963 33,650,892 96,170,173
At 30 June 2017
Cost 13,684,458 9,618,045 14,670,735 35,360,421 37,717,705 111,051,364
Accumulated depreciation 988,666 1,440,095 982,159 7,403,458 4,066,813 14,881,191
Net book value 12,695,792 8,177,950 13,688,576 27,956,963 33,650,892 96,170,173
Depreciation rates (%) 33 20 10 33 10
Leasehold Electrical Furniture Computer Total
improvements| and office | and fixtures | equipment Vehicles Assets
equipment
Rupees
Additions during the year - 4,655,845 6,565,029 11,769,747 37,717,705 60,708,326
Written off
Cost - - - 109,980 - 109,980
Depreciation - - - 7,735 - 7,735
- - - 102,245 - 102,245
Depreciation for the period - 113,947 38,666 712,350 295,042 1,160,005
Closing net book value - 4,541,898 6,526,363 10,955,152 37,422,663 59,446,076
At 30 June 2016
Cost - 4,655,845 6,565,029 11,659,767 37,717,705 60,598,346
Accumulated depreciation - 113,947 38,666 704,615 295,042 1,152,270
Net book value - 4,541,898 6,526,363 10,955,152 37,422,663 59,446,076

Depreciation rates (%) 33 20 10 33 10
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2016
Note Rupees Rupees
Addition during the year 5,361,345 -
Amortization 21 84,026 -
Net book value as at 30 June 5,277,319 -
Rate of amortization 33% 33%
Advance to suppliers 7.1 36,070,000 -
Long term deposits 7.2 12,442,600 3,706,310
48,512,600 3,706,310
7.1 This represents advance payment made to the suppliers for the purchase of vehicles.
7.2 This includes interest free security deposits for office building amounting to Rs. 12,260,100 (2016: Rs. 3,686,310) which
are not recognized at amortized cost as it will have an insignificant impact and are thus carried at historical cost.
2016
Note Rupees Rupees
Considered good:
Receivable against project implementation fee:
The Punjab Agriculture, Food and Drug Authority 3,106,152 -
Revamping of DHQs and THQs Hospitals 11,341,420 -
Mother and Child Hospital 1,289,321 -
Provision of Missing Specialties for Upgradation of DHQ
Hospital Sialkot to Teaching Hospital Sialkot 993,932 -
Others 385,217 -
17,116,042 -
Receivable against cost incurred:
Punjab Forensic Science Agency 1,749,565 -
Quaid-e-Azam Thermal Power (Private) Limited 1,934,275 -
Others 406 -
3,684,246 _
8.1 20,800,288 -
8.1 This represents balance due from the related parties.
2016
Note Rupees Rupees
Secured:
Mobilization advance to contractors and consultants 1,408,647,848 -
Advance to contractors 9.1 101,395,384 -
1,510,043,232 _
9.1 This represents advance given to the contractors for the procurement of machinery for the projects.
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2016
Note Rupees Rupees
Trade deposits
Security deposits 10.1 3,401,000 -
Margin against letter of credit 10.2 5,283,238 -
8,684,238 -
Short term prepayments:
Insurance 364,533 1,145,478
Rent 450,000 -
814,533 1,145,478
9,498,771 1,145,478
10.1 This represents cash margin withheld by the bank against the Pakistan State Oil fleet cards guarantee.
10.2 This represents margin withheld by the bank against the letter of credit for purchase of medical equipment relating to the
Pakistan Kidney and Liver Institute and Research Center.
2016
Note Rupees Rupees
Cash in hand 293,536 -
Cash at bank:
Current account 564,159 422,131,718
Deposit accounts 11.1 6,729,341,646 -
6,729,905,805 422,131,718
6,730,199,341 422,131,718
i These carry mark-up at the rate ranging from 3.75% to 5.55% (2016: Nil) per annum.
2016
Note Rupees Rupees
Deferred grants related to income 12.1 314,387,357 89,085,526
Deferred grants related to assets 12.2 159,618,311 70,968,995
12.3 474,005,668 160,054,521
12.1 Deferred grants related to income
Balance as at 01 July 2016 / 24 August 2015 89,085,526 -
Cash grant received during the year / period 465,445,000 116,677,000
Amortized during the year / period 19 240,143,169 27,591,474
Balance as at the end of the year / period 314,387,357 89,085,526
12.2 Deferred grants related to assets
Balance as at 01 July 2016 / 24 August 2015 70,968,995 -
Cash grant received during the year / period 102,959,500 72,129,000
Amortized during the year / period 19 14,310,184 1,160,005
Balance as at the end of the year / period 159,618,311 70,968,995
12.3 This represents grants received from the Government of the Punjab against the budget of the Authority for the year ended

30 June 2017. There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies attached to the grants.
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Note | Balance as at Receipt Total Total utilization| Balance as at
01 July 2016 during advance | during the year| 30 June 2017
the year receipt (Note 13.9)
Rupees
Pakistan Kidney and Liver Institute (PKLI)
and Research Centre 13.1 - 3,614,825000 3,614,825,000 2,269,688,373 1,345,136,627
Recep Tayyip Erdogan Hospital (RTEH) 13.2 - 1,089,199,176  1,089,199,176 547,141,087 542,058,089
Mother and Child Hospital 13.3 300,000,000 300,000,000 600,000,000 75,722,774 524,277,226
Revamping of DHQs and THQs Hospitals 134 - 3/433,764,141  3,433,764,141 226,828,402  3,206,935,739
Provision of Missing Specialties for Upgradation
of DHQ Hospital Sialkot to Teaching Hospital Sialkot  13.5 - 728,200,000 728,200,000 49,696,607 678,503,393
Information Technology University 13.6 - 75,233,000 75,233,000 2,393,164 72,839,836
Jinnah Hospital, Lahore 13.7 - 182,434,000 182,434,000 3,959,864 178,474,136
The Punjab Agriculture, Food and Drug Authority 13.8 - 331,783,000 331,783,000 155,307,616 176,475,384
300,000,000 9,755,438,317 10,055,438,317  3,330,737,887  6,724,700,430
Note | Balance as at Receipt Total Total utilization| Balance as at
24 August 2015 during advance during 30 June 2016
the period receipt the period*
Rupees
Mother and Child Hospital 13.3 - 300,000,000 300,000,000 - 300,000,000

13.1

13.2

13.3

13.4

13.5

The Authority will act as representative of the above mentioned projects and be responsible for the engineering,

procurement and construction as per terms of each agreement.

This represents advance received as per agreement between the Pakistan Kidney and Liver Institute and Research Centre
(PKLI & RC) and the Authority signed on 07 June 2016 (the “Effective Date”) for the construction of a charity project in
Lahore.

This represents advance received as per the agreement between the Recep Tayyip Erdogan Hospital Trust (RTEHT) and the
Authority signed on 05 September 2016 (the “Effective Date”) for the construction of RTEH Phase - | expansion.

This represents advance received as per the agreement between The Commissioner Rawalpindi Division, Rawalpindi duly
appointed with the additional charge of the Project Director of Hospital through notification No. SO (Dev-l) 25-56/2015
dated 23 May 2016 issued by Specialized Healthcare and Medical Education Department of Government of Punjab and
the Authority signed on 9 September 2016 (the “Effective Date”) for the construction of 100-bedded Mother and Child
Hospital in Murree.

This represents advance received as per the original agreement and amendment No. 1 between Primary and Healthcare
Department, Punjab and the Authority signed on 15 November 2016 and 27 February 2017 (the “Effective Date”)
respectively for the revamping of all DHQ Hospitals in Punjab, revamping of 15 THQ Hospitals and establishment of 15
Emergencies.

This represents advance received as per the agreement between Khawaja Muhammad Safdar Medical College &
Hospital, Sialkot and the Authority signed on 22 November 2016 for the upgradation of DHQ Hospital Sialkot to
Teaching Hospital, Sialkot.



Notes to the Financial Statements

13.6 This represents advance received as per the agreement between the Information Technology University and the Authority
signed on 12 June 2017 (the “Effective Date”) for the construction of main campus of the Information Technology
University in Lahore.

13.7 This represents advance received as per the agreement between the Specialized Healthcare and Medical Education
Department of Government of Punjab and the Authority signed on 28 April 2017 (the “Effective Date”) for the revamping
of the Jinnah Hospital, Lahore.

13.8 This represents advance received as per the agreement between Punjab Agriculture, Food and Drug Authority (PAFDA)
and the Authority signed on 15 December 2016 (the “Effective Date”) for the construction of PAFDA Complex / Science
Enclave.

13.9 This represents costs incurred by the Authority on behalf of the projects, which mainly includes the contractors’ fee,
consultants’ fee, equipment, advertisement and bank charges.

2016

Note Rupees Rupees

Creditors 2,085,391 23,378,853
Payable to contractors 770,284,213 -
Payable to consultants 187,052,098 -
Accrued expenses 60,948,428 2,510,481
Deferred liability 14.1 2,031,019 -
Withholding income tax payable 41,865,914 308,020
Withholding sales tax payable 2,547,280 82,197
Others payable 14.2 20,060,814 95,510
1,086,875,157 26,375,061

14.1 Deferred liability includes an amount of Rs. 1,829,887 (2016: Rs. Nil), resulting from a difference between amount paid
plus payable as per the contract and rent calculated on straight line basis relating to the operating lease as per 1AS-17.

14.2 This represents an amount payable under memorandum of understanding signed between the Specialized Healthcare

and Medical Education (SHC&ME) Department of Government of Punjab and the Authority for the establishment of
Project Monitoring Office (PMO). The movement of this balance has been provided hereunder:

2016

Rupees Rupees

Movement during the year / period:

Balance as at 01 July 2016 / 24 August 2015 - -

Advance received during the year / period 60,000,000 -
Expense incurred by the Authority on behalf of PMO 39,939,186 -
Balance as at the end of the year / period 20,060,814 -
97,908,607 -
This represents retention money payable to contractors, suppliers and consultants.
48,633,960 -

This represents the amount received from the customers in advance and was unearned as at year end.



Notes to the Financial Statements

17.1 Contingencies
Contingencies as of balance sheet date were Rs. Nil (2016: Rs. Nil).
17.2 Commitments
17.2.1  Commitments in respect of contracts for capital expenditure amounts to Rs.16,972 million as of balance sheet date
(2016: Rs. Nil).
2016
Rupees Rupees
17.2.2 Operating lease arrangement:
Rental commitments against the office building rent and vehicle rent:
Not later than one year 36,042,451 14,458,527
Later than one year but less than five year 36,373,802 23,920,056
17.2.3 Others
Security guard services 3,242,667 -
Internet services 882,167 -
Note Rupees Rupees
18.1 50,363,388 -
18.1 This represents project implementation fee, ranging from 2% to 5% of the total cost of project, for the execution of various
projects.
Note Rupees Rupees
Amortization of grant related to income 12.1 240,143,169 27,591,474
Amortization of grant related to assets 12.2 14,310,184 1,160,005
254,453,353 28,751,479
Income from financial assets:
Interest on deposit accounts 114,206,035 -
Income from assets other than financial assets:
Tender fee 818,002 -

115,024,037
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For the For the period from

year ended 24 August 2015
30 June 2017 to 30 June 2016
Note Rupees Rupees
21. ADMINISTRATIVE AND GENERAL EXPENSES
Salaries, wages and other benefits 285,096,635 15,365,017
Office rent 25,175,776 5,857,137
Consultancy and professional charges 28,495,859 -
Advertisement 6,217,574 2,230,499
Printing and stationery 12,483,222 1,558,726
Depreciation on property and equipment 5 14,226,158 1,160,005
Amortization on intangible assets 6 84,026 -
Travelling expenses 1,432,191 -
Repairs and maintenance 2,870,531 289,292
Utilities and generator expenses 5,152,977 485,619
Security expenses 1,414,926 233,092
Vehicle running and maintenance 10,292,936 428,928
Board of the Authority meeting fee 897,160 -
Meetings and office refreshments 7,433,175 474,848
Auditors’ remuneration 2,950,000 290,145
Assets written off = 102,245
Communication 3,527,243 101,060
Training expenses 1,445,069 63,610
Entertainment expenses 1,693,181 -
Miscellaneous 981,224 102,216
411,869,863 28,742,439
22. TAXATION
Current tax 7,952,530 -
The deferred tax assets on deductible temporary differences amounting to Rs. 31,517,918 have not been recognised in
these financial statements as it is not considered probable that future taxable profit will be available against which these
can be realised.
23. REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER AND BOARD OF AUTHORITY

The aggregate remuneration recognized in these financial statements including certain benefits to the Chief Executive

Officer and Member of the Authority are as follows:

2017 2016
Chief Chief
Executive Members Executive Members
Rupees

Remuneration 13,200,000 - 2,940,500 -
Leave encashment 379,726 = - -
Board of the Authority meeting fee - 897,160 - -

13,579,726 897,160 2,940,500 -
No. of persons 1 17 1 17

In addition, Chief Executive Officer is also provided with the Authority’s maintained vehicle. No amount has been paid to

the Members of the Authority except for fee for aftending the meetings of the Board.
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The Authority is an autonomous body of the Government of the Punjab, therefore entities which are owned and/or
controlled by the Government of the Punjab, or where the Government of the Punjab may exercise significant influence
are related parties of the Authority. Further, the Board of Members and the Chief Executive Officer of the Authority are
also related parties of the Authority.

Rupees Rupees
Party Name Nature of transactions
The Government of the Punjab Proceeds from grant 568,404,500 188,806,000
Pakistan Kidney and Liver Institute Proceeds for projects 3,614,825,000 -
and Research Centre Rendering of services 22,304,529 -
Deferred Revenue 25,945,471 -
Recep Tayyip Erdogan Hospital (RTEH) Proceeds for projects 1,079,279,673 -
Rendering of services 10,942,818 -
Deferred Revenue 22,688,489 -
Primary and Secondary Healthcare Proceeds for projects 3,433,764,141
Department Punjab Rendering of services 11,341,420 -
The Specialized Healthcare and Proceeds for projects 1,270,634,000 300,000,000
Medical Education Rendering of services 2,441,647 -
Planning and Development
Government of Punjab Rendering of services 178,958 -
Director General Public Relations Advertisement expense 32,765,930 1,974,561
Parks and Horticultural Authority Payment for the services 2,358,500 -
Information Technology University Proceeds for projects 75,233,000 -
Rendering of services 47,863 -
Punjab Agriculture, Food and Proceeds for projects 331,783,000 -
Development Authority Rendering of services 3,106,153 -
Project monitoring office Assets disposal 4,018,179 -
Balances with related parties
Deposits with The Bank of Punjab 6,729,905,805 422,131,718

Amounts due from and to other related parties are shown under respective notes to the financial statements.

Transactions and contracts with the related parties are based on the policy that all transactions between the Authority and
related parties are carried out at an arm’s length.

Financial instruments comprise long term deposits, trade receivables, trade deposits, cash and bank balances, trade and
other payables and retention money payable.

The authority has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

- Market risk

- Credit risk

- Liquidity risk
The Board of Authority has the overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of Authority’s risk management
framework. The Board is also responsible for developing and monitoring the Authority’s risk management policies.

This note presents information about the Authority’s exposure to each of the above risks, the Authority’s objectives,
policies and processes for measuring and managing risk, and the Authority’s management of capital.

The Authority’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the Authority, to set
appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems

are reviewed regularly to react to changes in market conditions and the Authority’s activities.
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25.1
(a)

(b)

(c)

Market risk
Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in foreign exchange rates. Currency risk arises mainly from future commercial transactions or receivables and payables
that exist due to transactions in foreign currencies.

The Authority is not exposed to currency risk arising from currency exposure as the Authority is not involved in foreign
currency transactions.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rates.

The Authority has no significant long-term interest-bearing financial instruments. The Authority’s interest rate risk arises
from bank balances only.

Other price risk

Other price risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are
caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instru-
ment traded in the market. The Authority is not exposed to commodity and equity price risk.

At the balance sheet date, the interest rate profile of the Authority’s interest-bearing financial instruments was:

2016

Rupees Rupees

Fixed rate instruments

Financial assets :

Bank balances - deposit accounts 6,729,341,646 -

25.2

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

The Authority does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.
Therefore, a change in interest rate at the balance sheet date would not affect surplus or deficit of the Authority.

Credit risk

Credit risk represents the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by
failing to discharge an obligation. The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was as follows:

2016

Rupees Rupees

Long term advances and deposits 48,512,600 3,706,310
Trade receivables 20,800,288 -
Trade deposits 8,684,238 -
Bank balances 6,729,905,805 422,131,718

The age of trade debts at balance sheet date was:

Age analysis of trade debts:

Neither past due nor impaired - _

Past due 1 - 3 Months 20,800,288 -

Based on past experience the management believes that no impairment is necessary in respect of trade receivables
past due, as some receivables have been recovered subsequent to the year end and for other receivables, there are

reasonable grounds to believe that the amounts will be recovered in short course of time.
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The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to external credit
ratings or to historical information about counterparty default rate. The table below shows the bank balances held with

some major counterparties at the balance sheet date:

Rating ‘
Banks Short term Long term Agency (Rupees)
The Bank of Punjab Al+ AA PACRA 6,729,905,805 422,131,718

25.3 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities. The
Authority’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to
meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking

damage to the Authority’s reputation. The Authority believes the liquidity risk to be low.

The table below analyses the Authority’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
period at the balance sheet to the contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual

undiscounted cash flows.

Carrying Contractual Less than One to More than
amount cash flows one year five years five years
Rupees
30 June 2017
Advance from customer 6,724,700,430 6,724,700,430 6,724,700,430 - -
Trade and other payables 1,040,430,944 1,040,430,944 1,040,430,944 - -
Retention money payable 97,908,607 97,908,607 97,908,607 - -
7,863,039,981 7,863,039,981 7,863,039,981 - -
Carrying Contractual Less than One to More than
amount cash flows one year five years five years
Rupees
30 June 2016
Advance from customer 300,000,000 300,000,000 300,000,000 - -
Trade and other payables 25,984,844 25,984,844 25,984,844 - -
325,984,844 325,984,844 325,984,844 - -

Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

The carrying values of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in financial statements approximate their fair values.
Fair value is determined on the basis of objective evidence at each reporting date.

25.4  Financial instruments by categories
Cash and Loans and Total
cash equivalent receivables
Rupees

As at 30 June 2017

Financial assets as per balance sheet

Long term deposits = 48,512,600 48,512,600
Trade receivables = 20,800,288 20,800,288
Trade Deposits = 8,684,238 8,684,238

Cash and bank balances

6,730,199,341

6,730,199,341

6,730,199,341

77,997,126

6,808,196,467
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Cash and Loans and Total
cash equivalent receivables
Rupees
As at 30 June 2016
Long term deposits - 3,706,310 3,706,310
Cash and bank balances 422,131,718 - 422,131,718
422,131,718 3,706,310 425,838,028

2017 Financial

2016 Financial

liabilities at liabilities at
amortized amortized
cost cost
Rupees Rupees
Financial liabilities as per balance sheet at amortized cost:
Trade and other payables 1,042,461,963 25,984,844

26. FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
The carrying amounts of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements approximate their fair
values. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.
Fair value measurements are categorized info Levels 1, 2 and 3 based on the degree to which the inputs fo the fair value
measurements are observable and significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which is as
follows
Level 1 — Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;
Level 2 — Inputs other than the quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices);
Level 3 — Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (i.e. unobservable inputs).
The Authority does not have any financial asset or financial liability which is required to be classified in the above levels.
2017 2016
Rupees Rupees
27. NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES
- Number of employees at the end of the year 216 67
- Average number of employees during the year 155 7
28. DATE OF AUTHORIZATION
These financial statements have been authorized for issue by Board of Authority on January 23, 2020.
29. GENERAL

- Figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupee, unless otherwise stated.
- Corresponding figures have been rearranged/reclassified, wherever necessary, for better and fair presentation.

However, no significant rearrangement/reclassification has been made in the financial statements.

Chief Executive (Officer Member
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